
City of Capitola Page 1 Updated 2/17/2016 10:45 AM 

Mayor: Ed Bottorff
Vice Mayor: Stephanie Harlan
Council Members: Jacques Bertrand

Dennis Norton
Michael Termini

Treasurer: Christine McBroom

REVISED

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR MEETING

THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 11, 2016

7:00 PM

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS
420 CAPITOLA AVENUE, CAPITOLA, CA  95010

CLOSED SESSION - 6:30 PM
CITY MANAGER’S OFFICE

An announcement regarding the items to be discussed in Closed Session will be made in the 
City Hall Council Chambers prior to the Closed Session.  Members of the public may, at this 
time, address the City Council on closed session items only.  There will be a report of any final 
decisions in City Council Chambers during the City Council's Open Session Meeting.

 
LIABILITY CLAIMS (Govt. Code §54956.95)

Claimant: Carrie Cox
Claimant: Tuka Gafari
Agency claimed against: City of Capitola



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
February 11, 2016

City of Capitola Page 2 Updated 2/17/2016 10:45 AM 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL – 7:00 PM
All correspondences received prior to 5:00 p.m. on the Wednesday preceding a Council 
Meeting will be distributed to Councilmembers to review prior to the meeting.  Information 
submitted after 5 p.m. on that Wednesday may not have time to reach Councilmembers, nor 
be read by them prior to consideration of an item.

All matters listed on the Regular Meeting of the Capitola City Council Agenda shall be 
considered as Public Hearings.

1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Council Members Dennis Norton, Stephanie Harlan, Jacques Bertrand, Michael Termini, and 
Mayor Ed Bottorff

2. PRESENTATIONS

A. Presentation of a Certificate of Appreciation to Sondi Carcello for her service on the 
Capitola Finance Advisory Committee 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: None

B. Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District Update 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive report by Alex Clifford, Santa Cruz Metropolitan 
Transit District General Manager.

3. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION

4. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS
Additional information submitted to the City after distribution of the agenda packet.

A. Item 9.B. Appeal on Surf School Permit Denial - Communications

B. Item 9.C. 115 San Jose Avenue Mercantile Redevelopment - Communications

5. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA

6. PUBLIC COMMENTS
Oral Communications allows time for members of the Public to address the City Council on any 
item not on the Agenda.  Presentations will be limited to three minutes per speaker.   Individuals 
may not speak more than once during Oral Communications.  All speakers must address the 
entire legislative body and will not be permitted to engage in dialogue. All speakers are 
requested to print their name on the sign-in sheet located at the podium so that their name may 
be accurately recorded in the minutes.  A MAXIMUM of 30 MINUTES is set aside for Oral 
Communications at this time.

7. CITY COUNCIL / CITY TREASURER / STAFF COMMENTS
City Council Members/City Treasurer/Staff may comment on matters of a general nature or 
identify issues for staff response or future council consideration.



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
February 11, 2016

City of Capitola Page 3 Updated 2/17/2016 10:45 AM 

8. CONSENT CALENDAR
All items listed in the “Consent Calendar” will be enacted by one motion in the form listed below.  
There will be no separate discussion on these items prior to the time the Council votes on the 
action unless members of the public or the City Council request specific items to be discussed 
for separate review.  Items pulled for separate discussion will be considered following General 
Government.

Note that all Ordinances which appear on the public agenda shall be determined to have been 
read by title and further reading waived.

A. Consider the January 28, 2016, Regular City Council Minutes 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Minutes.

B. Receive Planning Commission Action Minutes for the Regular Meeting of February 4, 2016 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive Minutes

C. Receive the Quarterly Financial Reports - Second Quarter Budget and First Quarter Sales 
Tax Report 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive Reports.  

D. Deny Liability Claims and Forward to the City's Liability Insurance Carrier 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Deny liability claims and forward to the City's liability insurance 
carrier.

9. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS
General Government items are intended to provide an opportunity for public discussion of each 
item listed.  The following procedure is followed for each General Government item:  1) Staff 
explanation; 2) Council questions; 3) Public comment; 4) Council deliberation; 5) Decision.

A. Presentation of Capitola Branch Library Conceptual Renderings 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive graphic.

B. Appeal on Surf School Permit Denial 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Accept report on the appeal of a denial of a Surf School Permit 
and provide direction on the following: 

Options:

1. Deny the appeal; or

2. Uphold the appeal and direct staff to prepare an Ordinance amending Municipal Code 
Section 9.30.020 to permit five surf schools to be introduced at the February 25, 2016 
Council meeting; and 

3. If appeal is upheld, amend the City Administrative Policy, I-34, Section III (B) to permit 
five Surf Schools.

C. 115 San Jose Avenue - Conceptual Review of Mercantile Redevelopment Proposal 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Accept staff presentation and provide direction on conceptual 
review of the Master Use Permit with 11 new residential units and parking management 
plan. 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA
February 11, 2016

City of Capitola Page 4 Updated 2/17/2016 10:45 AM 

D. Zoning Code Update - Initiation of Public Review 
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Accept staff presentation.

10. ADJOURNMENT

Note: Any person seeking to challenge a City Council decision made as a result of a proceeding in which, 
by law, a hearing is required to be given, evidence is required to be taken, and the discretion in the 
determination of facts is vested in the City Council, shall be required to commence that court action within 
ninety (90) days following the date on which the decision becomes final as provided in Code of Civil 
Procedure §1094.6. Please refer to code of Civil Procedure §1094.6 to determine how to calculate when 
a decision becomes “final.” Please be advised that in most instances the decision become “final” upon the 
City Council’s announcement of its decision at the completion of the public hearing. Failure to comply with 
this 90-day rule will preclude any person from challenging the City Council decision in court.

Notice regarding City Council: The City Council meets on the 2nd and 4th Thursday of each month at 
7:00 p.m. (or in no event earlier than 6:00 p.m.), in the City Hall Council Chambers located at 420 
Capitola Avenue, Capitola.

Agenda and Agenda Packet Materials: The City Council Agenda and the complete Agenda Packet are 
available for review on the City’s website: www.cityofcapitola.org and at Capitola City Hall and at the 
Capitola Branch Library, 2005 Wharf Road, Capitola, prior to the meeting. Agendas are also available at 
the Capitola Post Office located at 826 Bay Avenue, Capitola. Need more information? Contact the City 
Clerk’s office at 831-475-7300.

Agenda Materials Distributed after Distribution of the Agenda Packet: Pursuant to Government Code 
§54957.5, materials related to an agenda item submitted after distribution of the agenda packet are 
available for public inspection at the Reception Office at City Hall, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, 
California, during normal business hours.

Americans with Disabilities Act: Disability-related aids or services are available to enable persons with 
a disability to participate in this meeting consistent with the Federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 
1990. Assisted listening devices are available for individuals with hearing impairments at the meeting in 
the City Council Chambers. Should you require special accommodations to participate in the meeting due 
to a disability, please contact the City Clerk’s office at least 24-hours in advance of the meeting at 831-
475-7300. In an effort to accommodate individuals with environmental sensitivities, attendees are 
requested to refrain from wearing perfumes and other scented products.

Televised Meetings: City Council meetings are cablecast “Live” on Charter Communications Cable TV 
Channel 8 and are recorded to be rebroadcasted at 8:00 a.m. on the Wednesday following the meetings 
and at 1:00 p.m. on Saturday following the first rebroadcast on Community Television of Santa Cruz 
County (Charter Channel 71 and Comcast Channel 25). Meetings are streamed “Live” on the City’s 
website at www.cityofcapitola.org by clicking on the Home Page link “Meeting Video.” Archived meetings 
can be viewed from the website at anytime.

http://www.cityofcapitola.org
http://www.cityofcapitola.org


CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF FEBRUARY 11, 2016

FROM: City Manager Department

SUBJECT: Presentation of a Certificate of Appreciation to Sondi Carcello for her service on 
the Capitola Finance Advisory Committee 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: None

DISCUSSION: Sondi Carcello has served one term on the Capitola Finance Advisory 
Committee. Mayor Bottorff will provide Ms. Carcello with a certificate of appreciation for her 
service to the City.

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Sondi Carcello Certificate of Appreciation

Report Prepared By:  Susan Sneddon
City Clerk

2.A

Packet Pg. 5



City of Capitola . 

certificate of Appreciati011 
to 

SONDI CAR CELLO 
for Service as the Business Representative member on the 

Capitola Finance Advisiory Committee 
from January 2015 through December 2015 

Ed Bottorff, Mayor 
Signed and sealed this ]Jih day of February, 2016 

2.A.1

Packet Pg. 6

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

o
n

d
i C

ar
ce

llo
 C

er
ti

fi
ca

te
 o

f 
A

p
p

re
ci

at
io

n
  (

13
68

 :
 C

er
ti

fi
ca

te
 o

f 
A

p
p

re
ci

at
io

n
 t

o
 S

o
n

d
i



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF FEBRUARY 11, 2016

FROM: City Manager Department

SUBJECT: Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District Update 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive report by Alex Clifford, Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit 
District General Manager.

DISCUSSION: Alex Clifford, Santa Cruz Metropolitan Transit District (METRO) General 
Manager, will present information regarding the METRO structural deficit and provide a METRO 
services report.

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. METRO Talking Points

Report Prepared By:  Susan Sneddon
City Clerk

2.B

Packet Pg. 7



Why is Santa Cruz METRO undergoing a Comprehensive Operational 
Analysis (COA) and proposing a Service Reduction 

 
 

 Santa Cruz METRO has a structural deficit and insufficient Reserves to balance the budget in FY17:  
o What is a structural deficit?  A fiscal imbalance in which recurring expenses exceed 

recurring revenues. 
o For several years now, annual balanced budgets have been achieved by using non-recurring 

revenues (Reserves) and non-traditional capital eligible State Transit Assistance (STA) and 
Federal Small Transit Intensive Cities (STIC) funds. 

o In FY17 this will amount to $5.4 million in Reserves and $5 million in STIC and STA. 
o METRO estimates a need of $200 million for capital investments over the next ten years. 

 All capital eligible funds need to be redirected back to the capital program. 
o The Capital Program includes mission critical capital investments in bus and paratransit 

vehicle replacement, mid-life overhauls, facilities, non-revenue vehicles, Information 
Technology (IT) upgrades, customer facing capital investments, security projects and bus 
stop improvements. 

 
 Major Contributing Factors to the Structural Deficit: 

o Too many consecutive years in which METRO has experienced an increase in the recurring 
costs of personnel, goods and services and in which the growth in recurring revenues have 
not kept pace. 
 Annual year-over-year operating expense growth significantly exceeding the annual 

Consumer Price Index (CPI) for the region: FY12 – FY15 
 Increasing costs associated with health benefits and retirement exceeding the year-

over-year growth in revenues 
 Relatively flat ridership 
 Estimated Sales Tax Loss (FY08 – FY14) - $26M 

• Relatively flat sales tax growth 
• If sales tax growth year-over-year had instead continued to grow at a 

modest 3% in the years following the 2008 economic downturn, METRO 
would have received $26 million more revenue over the period FY08 – 
FY14. 

• As a result of the economic downturn, METRO had to subsidize its 
Operating Fund with $21.8 million in non-recurring revenue (Reserves) and 
capital eligible state and federal funds over this same period of time. 

o Uncontrollable outside forces contributing to the structural deficit 
 2008 Economic downturn - Prolonged Recession 
 Sluggish economic recovery since 2011 

• Continued high rate of local unemployment 
• Sales Tax Decline (FY08 – FY10) 
• Marginal Sales Tax Growth since 2011 

 State and federal transportation funds not keeping pace with the increasing cost of 
goods and services 

2.B.1

Packet Pg. 8

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

E
T

R
O

 T
al

ki
n

g
 P

o
in

ts
  (

13
45

 :
 M

E
T

R
O

 P
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

)



Why is Santa Cruz METRO undergoing a Comprehensive Operational 
Analysis (COA) and proposing a Service Reduction 

 

 Page 2 

o Unwillingness on the part of State and Federal elected officials to increase the gasoline and 
diesel fuel tax 
 Federal gas tax has been unchanged since 1993 at 18.4 cents/gallon 
 Federal diesel fuel tax has been unchanged since 1993 at 20.1 cents/gallon 
 These federal gas and diesel taxes provide revenues to the federal Highway Trust 

Fund (HTF).  2.86 cents of each of these two fuel taxes go to the Mass Transit 
Account 

 The State provides State Transit Assistance (STA) funds to METRO, which is derived 
from the sales tax on diesel fuel 

 STA revenues are beginning to decline because diesel fuel prices and consumption 
are not increasing as projected 

 Increasing STA will require that the State increase the rate of State sales tax on 
diesel fuel and dedicating the new revenues to the STA program 

 
 What has Santa Cruz METRO done recently to mitigate the Structural Deficit? 

o Increase revenues and decrease operating costs by: 
 Realigning the paratransit service to mirror the fixed-route 
 Restructuring paratransit fares and Highway 17 commuter express fares 
 Identifying operating and overhead efficiencies  
 Delaying filling vacant positions, and in some cases unfunded vacant positions 

 
 Service Snapshot 

o Service area population – 250,000 
o Fixed-Route Service  hours – 225,000 
o Annual passenger trips – 5.7 million 
o Fixed-Route Revenue Miles – 3.3 million 
o 110 buses (27 diesel and 83 CNG) 
o 41 paratransit vehicles (ParaCruz) 
o Fixed-Route Directional route miles – 479 
o Fixed-Route Number of bus stops – 935 
o Fixed-Route Number of routes - 35 

 
 Service Distribution Measures 

o Service distribution by Revenue Service Hours 
 Geographic – 17% 
 Productivity – 89% 

o Source of ridership 
 Geographic – 7% 
 Productivity – 93% 

 

2.B.1

Packet Pg. 9

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

E
T

R
O

 T
al

ki
n

g
 P

o
in

ts
  (

13
45

 :
 M

E
T

R
O

 P
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

)



Why is Santa Cruz METRO undergoing a Comprehensive Operational 
Analysis (COA) and proposing a Service Reduction 

 

 Page 3 

 Operations Funding Snapshot 

 

 

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) 

o Fixed-Route passengers per Revenue Service Hour – 24.7 
o Cost per Revenue Service Hour (RSH) 

 FY15 - $175.41 
 FY14 - $178.05 
 FY13 – $166.18 
 FY12 – $161.34 
 FY11 – $146.72 
 FY10 – $139.07 

o Fixed-Route Farebox Recovery Ratio 
 23.04% - Indicates how much of the fixed-route operating costs are covered by 

passenger fares 
 Also, indicates amount of non-passenger revenue (subsidy) needed to cover 

operating costs = 76.96% 
o Paratransit Cost per Trip - $56.93/trip 

 NOTE: Paratransit efficiency measure is Cost per Trip, unlike fixed-route, which is 
measured as cost per Revenue Service Hour (RSH) 

o Paratransit Farebox Recover Ratio 
 3.34% - Indicates how much of the paratransit operating costs are covered by 

passenger fares 
 

 State-of-Good-Repair (SOGR) 
o In a basic sense, a system is in a SOGR when all maintenance is performed at scheduled 

intervals, all facilities are properly maintained (there is no deferred maintenance) and all 
vehicles receive mid-life overhauls on-time and are later replaced as scheduled. 

39% 
 ½ cent sales 
tax (self-help 

county)  

9% 
Federal 

operating 
grants 

13% 
State funding 

sources 

20% 
Passenger 

fares 

1% 
Advertising, 
leases and 

other 

8% 
Capital 

eligible funds 

10% 
Reserves 

2.B.1

Packet Pg. 10

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

E
T

R
O

 T
al

ki
n

g
 P

o
in

ts
  (

13
45

 :
 M

E
T

R
O

 P
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

)



Why is Santa Cruz METRO undergoing a Comprehensive Operational 
Analysis (COA) and proposing a Service Reduction 

 

 Page 4 

o Santa Cruz METRO is not in a SOGR; METRO has identified a need for $200 million in capital 
investments over the next ten years, and the backlog is growing due to the shortage of 
capital resources. 
 

 METRO is overdue to replace much of its fixed-route bus fleet 
o METRO’s average age of the fixed-route bus fleet is 12 years 
o The target average age of the fleet should be 6.5 years 
o Buses reach the end of their life between 12 – 15 years, or, 500,000 miles 

 
 Why not plan to continue to help offset the $11 million total operating structural deficit by 

continuing to use STIC and STA (non-traditional capital eligible funds) as operating revenue 
indefinitely? 

o STIC and STA should be used for capital programs 
o METRO is rapidly falling further and further behind in capital investments 
o METRO needs about $20 million/year over the next ten years to address its capital needs 
o Capital revenue sources are increasingly more difficult to come by these days 
o In the past, METRO benefitted by generous federal “earmarks” 
o Federal “earmarks” are a funding source of the past, and likely never to return 
o METRO was the recipient of significant state capital revenues which resulted from the 2006 

California Proposition 1B, which funded many capital projects 
o Proposition 1B revenues have been exhausted and a new state capital bond measure is 

nowhere in sight 
o The new state Cap and Trade program will provide limited funding relief to METRO’s Capital 

Program due to the strict limitations placed on the dollars by the State 
o Redirecting STIC and STA back to the Capital Program will provide about $5 million/year for 

capital investments and help to begin reducing the $200 million unfunded capital backlog 
 

 Financial Stabilization Plan - How do we resolve the structural deficit, replenish our reserves, 
address the unfunded capital needs and establish a stable financial foundation? 

o Reduce operating expenses - Continue to identify operating and overhead efficiencies 
o Strive to bring the fixed-route cost per Revenue Service Hour and the paratransit Cost per 

Trip in better alignment with our peer transit properties 
o Implement a Fixed-Route service restructuring that will provide a level of bus service that 

matches the level of available operating revenues 
o Work with Cabrillo College to see if the students will support a student pass 
o Work with UCSC to see if the students will support an increase in transit and parking fees to 

support the level of service provided to UCSC and to help better address morning peak-
hour demand 

o Possible voter approval of a 2016 Santa Cruz County sales tax initiative that will provide 
much needed investments in local streets and roads, highway improvements, rail/trail and 
bus transit 

2.B.1

Packet Pg. 11

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

E
T

R
O

 T
al

ki
n

g
 P

o
in

ts
  (

13
45

 :
 M

E
T

R
O

 P
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

)



Why is Santa Cruz METRO undergoing a Comprehensive Operational 
Analysis (COA) and proposing a Service Reduction 

 

 Page 5 

o Increase marketing efforts to attract more riders to the system 
o Increase advertising and lease revenues 
o Continue to strongly advocate at a state and federal level for increased operating and 

capital grants 
 

 Adding Value/New Initiatives 
o Migrate cash and magnetic-stripe fare media customers to the Cruz Card to help expedite 

fare payment and facilitate better on-time performance 
o Seek funding for a Highway 1 feasibility study to look at the feasibility of adding “bus on 

shoulder” to Highway 1 
o Seek grants to add electric buses to the METRO fleet 
o Investigate adding electric over-the-road coaches to the Highway 17 commuter service 
o Identify funding for an automatic vehicle location (AVL) system that will provide stop-level 

on-time performance data and a customer facing smart phone application for customers to 
use to determine when their next bus will arrive. 
 

2.B.1

Packet Pg. 12

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 M

E
T

R
O

 T
al

ki
n

g
 P

o
in

ts
  (

13
45

 :
 M

E
T

R
O

 P
re

se
n

ta
ti

o
n

)



ADDITIONAL MATERIAL -ITEM 9.B. 
2/11/16 CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Sneddon, Su (ssneddon@cLcapitola.ca.us) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Cliff Hodges (Adventure Out) <cliff@adventureout.com> 
Monday, February 08, 2016 1:43 PM 
City Council 
Public Comment - Council Meeting Feb 11 , 2016 - Re: Agenda Item 98 - Appeal on Surf 
School Permit 

Dear Council-Members of Capitola-

I write to you in support of the Capitola Police Department and the hard work they have done to create a fair and 
thoughtful application system for the surf school permits that were issued for 2016. As most of you are aware, there 
was significant confusion a year ago regarding changes to the permitting system wh ich resulted in a TEMPORARY 
increase to five (5) allowed surf schools in the City of Capitola for the year of 2015 only. All involved parties, including 
the applicant that was denied a permit for 2016, were aware that the increase was temporary and only for the year of 
2015. 

With only 8 allowable spaces for surf school students in the water, it is already very difficult for 4 schools to operate at 
the same break and it requires significant communication between surf school management to do so. With 4 schools, 
each school at least knows there is an equal sub-division of 2 students per s.:hool, with any lessons larger than 2 
requiring communication and coordination with the other schools. Adding a 5th school permanently would make these 
numbers even more difficult to work with and I believe would contribute to more conflict and possibility of ordinance 
violations by the schools . 

I believe the eva luation system introduced by Capitola PD this year was thorough and effective and selected the most 
qualified and experienced cand idates to operate surf schools in the City of Capitola. I urge the Council to uphold the 
decisions made by Capitola PD and deny the current appeal. 

Thank you, 

Cliff Hodges 
CEO & Founder 

Adventure Out LLC 

email : ciiff(O)adventureollt.com 
mobile: 831-236-4212 
office: 800-509-3954 
fa x: 866-388-9249 

web: ~,{~y."'!.il9.y'9.r:J~JgQ~It..,\;Qm 

. 
> 

r:,)'"' i t .
PL"NF.T 

1 

4.A

Packet Pg. 13

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
It

em
 9

.B
. A

p
p

ea
l o

n
 S

u
rf

 S
ch

o
o

l P
er

m
it

 D
en

ia
l -

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

s 
 (

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L

 M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S

)



ADDITIONAL MATERIAL - ITEM 9.B. 
2/11/16 CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Sneddon, Su (ssneddon@cLcapitola.ca.us) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 

Dear Council, 

Matt Arthur <marthur70@sbcglobal.net> 
Wednesday, February 10, 2016 10:25 AM 
City Council 
Sneddon, Su (ssneddon@ci.capitola.ca.us) 
February 11, 2016 - Agenda Report Inaccuracy on Public Hearing 9-8 

The beginning of the second paragraph under "Background" on the February 11,2016 Agenda 
Report on Public Hearing 9-B is inaccurate. This is important information that needs to be corrected 
and made clear. The Agenda Report states that "Due to increased interest in operating Surf Schools, in 
early 2015 the City Council approved an Uncodified Ordinance to allow a maximum of five Surf Schools to operate 
for 2015 only." This sentence is inaccurate. The truth behind the 2015 uncodified ordinance allowing a maximum of 5 
schools is this. At the March 12, 2015 City Counci I meeting the council identified flaws in the undisclosed 2015 Surf 
School permit approval process. Flaws that ultimately led the council to establish and put into place an uncodified 
ordinance allowing a left out permit applicant as the 5th permit holder. The uncodified ordinance was not "Due to 
increased interest in operating Surf Schools" . It was due to the flawed undisclosed 2015 Surf School permit approval 
process. 

Thank you. 

Matt 

Matt Arthur 

1 

4.A

Packet Pg. 14

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
It

em
 9

.B
. A

p
p

ea
l o

n
 S

u
rf

 S
ch

o
o

l P
er

m
it

 D
en

ia
l -

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

s 
 (

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L

 M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S

)



ADDITIONAL MATERIAL -ITEM 9.B. 
2/11/16 CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Sneddon, Su (ssneddon@ci.capitola.ca.us) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Capitola BIA <capitolavillage1 @gmail.com> 
Wednesday, February 10, 2016 11 :20 PM 
Sneddon, Su (ssneddon@ci.capitola .ca.us) 
Item 9B 

To the Capitola City Council: 

The Board of Directors of the Capitola Village and Wharf Business Improvement Area strongly 
urges you to uphold the appeal by Jason Alaniz, owner of Capitola Surf and Paddle, to be 
issued a permit to operate a surf school at Capitola Beach. The Police Chief states that he 
operated last year with no citations. In keeping with the City's "Local Vendor Preference" 
policy, perhaps an anonymous questionnaire was not the best way to proceed. Perhaps an 
extra "point" should be given to the businesses operating in the village. 

If the fear is too many students in the water, perhaps limiting the number of students in a 
class to 6 rather than 8 would be preferable to excluding a local business, in good standing, 
from doing business in the town where it is located. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

BIA Board Members: 
Gary Wetsel 
Dede Harrington 
Steve Austin 
David Lyng 
Carin Hanna 
Devon Salter 
Ted Burke 
Janelle Cox 
Duane Dietz 

Capitola Village BIA 
capitolavillage.com 

Follow us on Facebook: https:llwww.facebook.com/CapitolaVi ll age?ref=hl 

1 

4.A

Packet Pg. 15

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
It

em
 9

.B
. A

p
p

ea
l o

n
 S

u
rf

 S
ch

o
o

l P
er

m
it

 D
en

ia
l -

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

s 
 (

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L

 M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S

)



February 11-2016 

To the Capitola City Council. 

ADDITIONAL MATERIAL -ITEM 9.B. 
2/11/16 CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

My name is Vince Felicctta my wife and I own Free to Ride Surf Shop. I would like to talk on behalf of 

Jason Alaniz and his shop Capitola Surf and Paddle. Since they have opened they have been a great asset 

and a great ambassador to the sport of surfing. Having two companies in Capitola that provide a service 

like surf lessons really helps the overall economy of Capitola. Why should I as a merchant refer people 

who call in for surf lessons to an out of town company. If I send them to Club Ed, which I have referred 

hundreds of people to over the years, there is no guarantee that he will bring the people to Capitola. He 

has the option to teach at various beaches. He runs a great surf school and I have no problem with him 

or his school. With CSP being in town I can refer people to them. The people come to town and spend 

the day and spend their money in my store and the other stores in Capitola including the restaurants. 

They pay parking meters and parking tickets that equate to money for Capitola. You May ask why I don't 

refer people to Capitola Beach Company. I used to send people to them all the time. I believe if the 

shops work together instead of petty bickering we could all make more money. But I had to stop when 

customers kept coming in to my store and telling us that Capitola Beach Co. was bad mouthing our store 

to them. I spend a lot of time in the water. I see who teaches lessons and how often they are in Capitola. 

Capitola Beach Co does a lot of lessons, Club Ed Does a lot of lessons this is gieat. I see CSP doing a lot of 

lessons. But I don't see the other companies bringing very many lessons to Capitola. $0 my question is 

why are we giving the rights to surf lessons away to companies that don't even bring their students here 

anyways. This just seems counter productive to the overall success and economy of Capitola. Lets all 

work together and bring in tourists and make a memorable experience for the tourist. Instead we are 

showing them we are a selfish bitter community. 

Sincerely 

Vi~ 
~to Ride Surf Shop 

4.A

Packet Pg. 16

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
It

em
 9

.B
. A

p
p

ea
l o

n
 S

u
rf

 S
ch

o
o

l P
er

m
it

 D
en

ia
l -

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

s 
 (

A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L

 M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S

)



ADDITIONAL MATERIAL - ITEM g.C. 
2/11/16 CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Sneddon, Su (ssneddon@ci.capitola.ca.us) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Carin Hanna <carinhanna@aol.com> 
Tuesday, February 09, 201610:16 PM 
Sneddon , Su (ssneddon@ci.capitola.ca.us) 
Item 98 2/11/16 

I will be unable to attend the council meeting this week. 

Some of my concerns with the Master U are experiential. Having been one of the first tenants in the 
Mercantile and seeing it's evolution through the years, the first red flag is lack of adherence to 
conditions imposed by the city over the years. The management of the Mercantile continually pushes 
the limits or requirements set by the city and waits for the city to push back. Sometimes due to staff 
changes at the city, conditions are forgotten and a new operating history is formed. 

This has definitely been the case with the number of seats allowed in the restaurant when it changed 
from a cookie shop to a full service restaurant. Originally permitted as take out only, within months it 
was a sit down facility overcrowded with tables. Legal wrangl ing followed. Over time the very 
crowded, intensified use became the norm. Well , we all love Caruso's and want to see them succeed 
so why not? At times they even put folding tables in the walkway of the closed Mercantile to handle 
overflow. The city staff has all gone home so who's to know. 

The parking was orig inally to be for the mercantile employees and customers. Now there is no 
validation system, no employee parking, just pay public parking. The parking lot is a business to 
itself. More than double the amount of restaurant area with no increase in public parking 
available? No public hearing on conditional use? Does not seem to be a good situation in which 
to put the staff due to the controversial nature of the Mercantile management. 

The restrooms were originally to be open to the public. When I asked the Planning Director why this 
was no longer being enforced , he knew nothing about the original condition imposed on the 
Mercantile. Now if you are dining in the restaurant you can get a key to the restroom, but shoppers 
are often denied use of the restrooms. As a business owner who allows the public to use it's 
restroom, even non customers, it's unfortunate that the management of the Mercantile claims that it 
too difficult to maintain a public restroom . Capitola should be ashamed of the lack of public 
restrooms, yet no plan surfaces to remedy the problem. 

The "valet" parking system is highly suspect. First of all , who is responsible for hiring, 
supervising and paying for the valet? The management of the Mercantile or the owners of the 
condos? With the potential of 13 different owners on the parcel (the condo on the ocean side of the 
property, the Mercanti le, 11 condo units on the mountain side of the property) chaos could be the 
order of the day. Look at all the problems up at the Mall because the property is under such varied 
ownership. If there is a breakdown in the parking scheme, who is responsible? 

The parking report which suggests that the Capitola Village Parking Requirements are too 
high should be ignored. The reality is that the trend in the county is permitting 
development without enough parking . In my neighborhood a new commercial/residential 
project was just approved with 80% of parking the county used to require for the size of 
the development. The county seems to think that every commerciallresidential mixed use 
project has shared parking. Not in a beach community. Not when the commercial side of 
the development is heavily restaurant use. 

4.B

Packet Pg. 17

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
It

em
 9

.C
. 1

15
 S

an
 J

o
se

 A
ve

n
u

e 
M

er
ca

n
ti

le
 R

ed
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

- 
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

at
io

n
s 

 (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



What are the noise projections for the large, enclosed parking structure? I see nothing in the 
reports addressing this . Horns honking , tires squealing , the echoes of people yelling (especially late 
at night coming from the bars) . That noise will be directed across San Jose Ave to the homes on 
Lawn Way. What about noise to the condos over the parking? Are the lifts quiet? 

These condos are really just individually owned hotel rooms with no staff on duty. Most likely 
they are not going to be inhabited by people with a connection to the community. "Private terraces" 
sounds nice - view of the roof of the Mercantile? Is there storage for each unit for bikes, 
surfboards, barbecues, etc? 

Garbage - currently the garbage enclosure is barely large enough for the amount of garbage 
generated by the Mercantile in the summer. With more than twice the restaurant space and 11 
residential uses, there will need to be a much larger area or a compactor (another noise 
factor?) Access for garbage trucks? 

This property should have had a master plan from its first change of use. It has been 
piecemeal modified over the years. This is one of the largest parcels in the village. Now it 
will be divided among up to 13 owners? At some point down the road , the many problems 
of the old bowling ally building might become so great, the owner would want to rebuild 
it. With condos surrounding it the options are limited. 

The residential make up of the village is important and has always been in the front of the minds of 
city government. This does nothing to further the goal of a mixed use village because this is visitor 
serving housing not true residential. This last summer was worse than ever for the residents in 
and surrounding the village. The worst gridlock, with angry visitors stuck in traffic. Not fun for a lot 
of people. The overflow into the neighborhoods now continues much later into the night. We love our 
village. It's a little jewel. But jewels can loose their sparkle. I hope you reject the Master Use 
Permit and look very carefully at the concept of a hotel not called a hotel on this property. 

Thank you , 
Carin Hanna 

2 

4.B

Packet Pg. 18

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
It

em
 9

.C
. 1

15
 S

an
 J

o
se

 A
ve

n
u

e 
M

er
ca

n
ti

le
 R

ed
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

- 
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

at
io

n
s 

 (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



Sneddon, Su (ssneddon@ci.capitola.ca.us) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

mmkinstler@aol.com 
Tuesday, February 09, 20168:04 PM 
City Council 

ADDITIONAL MATERIAL - ITEM 9.C. 
2/11/16 CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Subject: Council Meeting 2/16/2016 Item 9C Mercantile Master Plan 

Dear City Council , 

Please proceed with great caution as you consider the proposed changes to the Mercantile property in the heart of 
Capitola Village. I am especially concerned by the precedent that would set by the introduction of the idea of "shared 
parking" and the reduction by half of required parking. At the very least a transparent public process for examining these 
changes needs to happen before any decision is make on this Master Use permit. 

The Central Village has a serious shortage of parking and this plan would only make it worse. As you know many of the 
residences have no parking (like Lawn Way) and have to rely on permit parking in the few parking spaces available in the 
Central Village. 

Thank you , 

Margaret Kinstler and Rich Didday 

1 

4.B

Packet Pg. 19

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
It

em
 9

.C
. 1

15
 S

an
 J

o
se

 A
ve

n
u

e 
M

er
ca

n
ti

le
 R

ed
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

- 
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

at
io

n
s 

 (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



Sneddon, Su (ssneddon@cLcapitola.ca.us) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Nels Westman <nels@bestwestman.com> 
Tuesday, February 09, 20169:54 AM 
City Council 

ADDITIONAL MATERIAL -ITEM 9.C. 
2/11/16 CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Subject: CC Meeting 2/11/16 Item 9.C. Mercantile Master Plan 

TO: City Council 

FROM: Nels Westman 

SUBJ: Item 9.C. Mercantile Master Plan 

Dear City Council, 

Realistically speaking it looks like what we have here is an 11 room condo/hotel with a large restaurant and bar 
underneath it And while r don 't think the community is thrilled to death with the prospect of yet another hotel 
project for Capitola Village that is not specifically what concerns me about this proposal. Rather, it worries me 
is that this effectively sets precedent for new and far more permissive parking requirements in Capitola Village. 
r know I don 't have to tell you that the parking situation in the Village is horrendous, not only for visitors and 
business patrons but also for the poor Village Residents who face relentlessly increasing competition for a 
shrinking number of parking spaces in which their Village Resident Permits will work. So hopefully one of your 
guiding principals tonight will be don't make a bad parking situation even worse. 

This parking study strikes me as kind of a shell game. By far and away the hottest businesses in the Village are 
bars and restaurants. They dwarf retail. No doubt much of the Village parking shortage is directly linked to the 
enviable success of our bar and restaurant scene. This parking study sets the precedent of exacerbating these 
shortages by cutting in half the amount of parking that bars and restaurants are required to provide. That ' s 
moving in the wrong direction. 

Furthermore, this parking study proposes to institutionalize in the Village the completely bogus and dangerous 
concept of shared parking. Parking is a valuable and scarce resource in the Village. It is laughable to think the 
smart thing to do is to allow more intense development by sharing what doesn ' t exist. The bar and restaurant 
operation is going to gobble up the parking, particularly since their requirements have been so liberalized as 
recommended by this parking study. The residential cars need to be continuously 8' in the air in order that the 
restaurant can use the space underneath them. This represents huge operational difficulties. Retail will be 
scratching for crumbs. The simple fact is realistically there is nothing to share. 

Capitola Village is a unique and complicated traffic and parking environment. To apply the same national 
parking standards that would apply in Livermore, Omaha or Orlando is cynical and unwise and is doomed to 
failure . 

The use of parking lifts could be very useful but the operational procedures need to be carefully spelled out and 
bulletproof and must include effective on-going monitoring and enforcement to insure that the developer and 
his employees/subcontractors adhere absolutely to the rules. To leave it up to some unaccountable association of 
condo owners will insure that the Mercantile ' s parking issues would soon spill over onto Village streets. 

1 

4.B

Packet Pg. 20

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
It

em
 9

.C
. 1

15
 S

an
 J

o
se

 A
ve

n
u

e 
M

er
ca

n
ti

le
 R

ed
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

- 
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

at
io

n
s 

 (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



The amount of space in the Mercantile devoted to bars and restaurants needs to be substantially reduced from 
the proposed 4400 sq. ft to achieve a much more sustainable parking supply. Required parking should remain 
the same as is required for other restaurant/bar operations in the Village. 

And finally please do not allow such a substantial erosion of Capitola's parking requirements for new Village 
development without a free-standing, transparent and robust public process. This public process needs to occur 
well before any decision is made on this Master Use Perinit. 

Thank you. 

Nels Westman 

2 

4.B

Packet Pg. 21

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
at

io
n

: 
It

em
 9

.C
. 1

15
 S

an
 J

o
se

 A
ve

n
u

e 
M

er
ca

n
ti

le
 R

ed
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

- 
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

at
io

n
s 

 (
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L
 M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S
)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF FEBRUARY 11, 2016

FROM: City Manager Department

SUBJECT: Consider the January 28, 2016, Regular City Council Minutes 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve minutes.

DISCUSSION: Attached for City Council review and approval are the minutes of the subject 
meeting.

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Draft January 28, 2016, City Council Minutes

Report Prepared By:  Susan Sneddon
City Clerk

8.A

Packet Pg. 22



City of Capitola Page 1 Updated 2/2/2016 1:10 PM 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR MEETING ACTION MINUTES

THURSDAY, JANUARY 28, 2016 – 7:00 PM

REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL

1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Councilmember Dennis Norton: Present, Mayor Ed Bottorff: Present, Council Member 
Jacques Bertrand: Present, Vice Mayor Stephanie Harlan: Present, Council Member 
Michael Termini: Present.

City Treasurer Christine McBroom was absent.

2. PRESENTATIONS
A. Presentation of a Certificate of Appreciation to Sondi Carcello for her service on the 

Capitola Finance Advisory Committee [120-40/330-30]

Mayor Bottorff stated that Ms. Carcello is unable to attend tonight’s meeting so she 
will receive her certificate of appreciation at the February 11, 2016, City Council 
meeting.

B. Introduction of Police Officers 
Chief Escalante introduced Police Sergeant Andy Dally and Police Officer Brantly 
Sandretti.

3. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION 
No Closed Session held.

4. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS
City Clerk Sneddon stated the following additional materials were received:
A. Item 8.A. regarding Library Commission Appointment - Communication
B. Item 10.A. regarding Village Parking 3-Hour Time Limit Continuation - 

Communication
C. Item 10.A. regarding Village Parking 3-Hour Time Limit Continuation - Survey
D. Item 10.C. regarding Investment Plan Developed by the Santa Cruz County Regional 

Transportation Commission - Communication

5. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA
None provided.

6. PUBLIC COMMENTS
None provided.

8.A.1

Packet Pg. 23

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 J
an

u
ar

y 
28

, 2
01

6,
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l M

in
u

te
s 

 (
12

95
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
January 28, 2016

City of Capitola Page 2 Updated 2/2/2016 1:10 PM 

7. CITY COUNCIL / CITY TREASURER / STAFF COMMENTS
Mayor Bottorff stated that Council Member Termini and he attended the Soquel 
Elementary School Science Fair.
City Manager Goldstein provided an assessment of recent storm damages which resulted 
in the lower stairs to Hooper Beach being damaged, and a tree falling at Esplanade Park 
damaging the retraining wall and railing.
Public Works Director Jesberg provided an update on the damages as result of the recent 
storms. In addition, he provided a status report regarding the Peery Park Walkway 
Improvement Project, and the Capitola Avenue Storm Drain Repair Project.

8. BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEES APPOINTMENTS
A. Consider Appointments to the Art and Cultural Commission and the Library Advisory 

Committee [110-10]
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Make Appointments.

RESULT: APPOINTED KIM HOGAN FOR THE POSITION OF “ARTIST” ON THE 
ART AND CULTURAL COMMISSION [UNANIMOUS]

MOVER: Michael Termini, Council Member  
SECONDER: Dennis Norton, Council Member 
AYES: Norton, Bertrand, Harlan, Termini, Bottorff

RESULT: MAYOR BOTTORFF APPOINTED ARIEL GRAY TO THE LIBRARY 
ADVISORY COMMITTEE AS HIS APPOINTMENT

9. CONSENT CALENDAR

RESULT: ADOPTED ITEMS NO. 9.A., 9.B., 9.C., 9.D., AND 9.E. [UNANIMOUS]
MOVER: Michael Termini, Council Member  
SECONDER: Jacques Bertrand, Council Member 
AYES: Norton, Bertrand, Harlan, Termini, Bottorff

A. Consider the January 14, 2016, Regular City Council Minutes 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve Minutes.

B. Receive Planning Commission Action Minutes for the Regular Meeting of January 21, 
2016 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive Minutes.

C. Approval of City Check Register Reports Dated December 4, December 11, 
December 18, December 25, and December 31, 2015 [300-10]
RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Approve City Check Register Reports.

D. Set a Hearing Date to Consider an Appeal of a Police Department Denial for a 2016 
Surf School Permit [1020-20]
RECOMMENDED ACTION: That the City Council set a hearing for Thursday, 
February 11, 2016 to consider an appeal by Capitola Surf and Paddle regarding the 
Police Department’s denial of their 2016 Surf School Permit.

8.A.1

Packet Pg. 24

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 J
an

u
ar

y 
28

, 2
01

6,
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l M

in
u

te
s 

 (
12

95
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
January 28, 2016

City of Capitola Page 3 Updated 2/2/2016 1:10 PM 

E. Approval of a Air Board Grant and an Agreement with the Monterey Unified Air 
Pollution Control District to Receive a Grant for Traffic Signal Adaptive Control 
Systems [430-50/490-70]
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve an agreement with the Monterey Unified Air 
Pollution Control District to receive a grant in the amount of $369,600 for Traffic 
Signal Adaptive Control Systems along 41st Avenue, and award a contract to Kimley-
Horn and Associates in the amount of $98,500 for grant implementation, 
management and reporting.

10. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS
A. Consider a Resolution Continuing the Parking Time Limit in the Village at Three 

Hours [470-70]
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution. 

Carin Hanna, Business Improvement Area Advisory Committee (BIA) representative, 
stated that the BIA has requested that the City return to the two-hour parking time 
limit in the Village. She reported the results of a recent survey done regarding the 
Village three-hour parking.

Carin Hanna stated as a local business owner that she is in favor of continuing the 
parking time limit in the Village at three hours.

RESULT: ADOPTED RESOLUTION NO. 4043 CONTINUING THE PARKING LIMIT 
IN THE VILLAGE AT THREE HOURS; TO BI-ANNUALLY REVIEW THE 
PARKING LIMITS IN THE VILLAGE; AND TO RECEIVE AN ANNUAL 
REPORT ON CITATIONS [UNANIMOUS]

MOVER: Michael Termini, Council Member  
SECONDER: Dennis Norton, Councilmember
AYES: Norton, Bertrand, Harlan, Termini, Bottorff

B. Receive the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 
2015, and the Housing Successor Independent Financial Audit and Annual Progress 
Report [310-20]
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive Reports.

RESULT: RECEIVED REPORT

There was Council consensus to discussed General Government Item No. 10.D. 
prior to Item No. 10.C.
D. Community Based Health and Human Services Providers Program Fiscal Year 2016-

2017 Application Process and Community Grant Ad-Hoc Group Recommendations 
[330-30]
RECOMMENDED ACTION: (1) Adopt the recommendations of the Ad Hoc 
Subcommittee; and (2) Determine whether or not to allow new agencies or 
organizations to apply for the existing Community Based Health and Human Services 
Providers Program for Fiscal Years 2016-2017.
Raymon Cancino, Community Bridges Chief Executive Officer, thanked the City 
Council for their past contributions to Community Bridges.

8.A.1

Packet Pg. 25

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 J
an

u
ar

y 
28

, 2
01

6,
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l M

in
u

te
s 

 (
12

95
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
January 28, 2016

City of Capitola Page 4 Updated 2/2/2016 1:10 PM 

RESULT: TO ADOPT THE RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE COMMUNITY BASED 
HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES PROVIDERS AD HOC 
SUBCOMMITTEE [UNANIMOUS]

MOVER: Michael Termini, Council Member
SECONDER: Jacques Bertrand, Council Member 
AYES: Norton, Bottorff, Bertrand, Harlan, Termini

RESULT: TO ALLOW NEW AGENCIES OR ORGANIZATIONS TO APPLY FOR 
THE EXISTING COMMUNITY BASED HEALTH AND HUMAN 
SERVICES PROVIDERS PROGRAM FOR FISCAL YEARS 2016-
2017.ADOPTED [UNANIMOUS]

MOVER: Stephanie Harlan, Council Member
SECONDER: Dennis Norton, Council Member 
AYES: Norton, Bottorff, Bertrand, Harlan, Termini

C. Consider a Resolution Endorsing the Investment Plan Developed by the Santa Cruz 
County Regional Transportation Commission for a 1/2-Cent Sales Tax Measure to be 
placed on the November 2016 Ballot [770-05]
RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution.

George Dondero, Santa Cruz County Regional Transportation Commission 
(SCCRTC) Executive Director, presented information on this item.

Sam Storey, local resident, stated concerns regarding the proposed Investment 
Plan as presented by the SCCRTC.

Raymon Cancino, Community Bridges Chief Executive Officer, stated concerns 
regarding the Council adopting the Investment Plan as stated in the draft Resolution; 
specifically the Expenditure Category for Mobility Access.

Kirt Ance, Lift Line Program Director │Community Bridges, stated the importance 
of Lift Line services.

8.A.1

Packet Pg. 26

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 J
an

u
ar

y 
28

, 2
01

6,
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l M

in
u

te
s 

 (
12

95
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
January 28, 2016

City of Capitola Page 5 Updated 2/2/2016 1:10 PM 

RESULT: ADOPTED RESOLUTION NO. 4044 ENDORSING THE INVESTMENT 
PLAN DEVELOPED BY THE SANTA CRUZ COUNTY REGIONAL 
TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION FOR A 1/2-CENT SALES TAX 
MEASURE TO BE PLACED ON THE NOVEMBER 2016 BALLOT; 
AND THE EXPENDITURE CATEGORY FOR MOBILITY ACCESS AS 
STATED IN THE INVESTMENT PLAN MODIFIED AS FOLLOWS:

PARAGRAPH 1 MODIFIED TO READ:

“1. ENDORSES AN INVESTMENT PLAN CONSISTING OF THE 
FOLLOWING CATEGORIES OF EXPENDITURES:”

SUB-PARAGRAPH 1.D. MODIFIED TO READ:

“16% FOR MOBILITY ACCESS - ACCESSIBLE TRANSPORTATION 
PRIMARILY FOR SENIORS, PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES AND 
VETERANS SUBJECT, TO FINAL DETERMINATION ON THE 
ALLOCATION TO SERVICE PROVIDERS” 

[UNANIMOUS]

MOVER: Dennis Norton, Councilmember
SECONDER: Jacques Bertrand, Council Member
AYES: Norton, Bottorff, Bertrand, Harlan, Termini

11. ADJOURNMENT
Meeting adjourned at 9:00 PM.

____________________
Ed Bottorff, Mayor

ATTEST: 

______________________, CMC
Susan Sneddon, City Clerk

8.A.1

Packet Pg. 27

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 J
an

u
ar

y 
28

, 2
01

6,
 C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l M

in
u

te
s 

 (
12

95
 :

 A
p

p
ro

va
l o

f 
C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l M

in
u

te
s)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF FEBRUARY 11, 2016

FROM: Community Development

SUBJECT: Receive Planning Commission Action Minutes for the Regular Meeting of 
February 4, 2016 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive Minutes

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Planning Commission Action Minutes of February 4, 2016

Report Prepared By:  Linda Fridy
Planning Commission Minutes Clerk

8.B

Packet Pg. 28



City of Capitola Page 1 Updated 2/5/2016 8:21 AM  

ACTION MINUTES 
CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 4, 2016 
7 P.M. – CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

 

 
 

1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

2. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

A. Additions and Deletions to Agenda 

B. Public Comments 

C. Commission Comments 

D. Staff Comments 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

A. Planning Commission - Regular Meeting of Jan. 21, 2016  
 

RESULT: ACCEPTED [4 TO 0] 

MOVER: Linda Smith, Commissioner 

SECONDER: Susan Westman, Commissioner 

AYES: Smith, Newman, Welch, Westman 

ABSTAIN: Ortiz 

4. CONSENT CALENDAR 

411 Beverly Ave. was pulled from consent and heard as public hearing item 5A. 

5. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. 411 Beverly Avenue #16-006 APN: 035-093-41 
Major Revocable Encroachment Permit for a rock retaining wall in the public right-of-way in 
the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) Zoning District.  
This project is in the Coastal Zone but does not require a Coastal Development Permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: LaDon & Richard Detro 
Representative: LaDon & Richard Detro, filed: 1/9/15 

RESULT: APPROVED AS AMENDED [UNANIMOUS] 

MOVER: Linda Smith, Commissioner 

SECONDER: Edward Newman, Commissioner 

AYES: Smith, Ortiz, Newman, Welch, Westman 

 
B. Pacific Gas and Electric - Community Pipeline Safety Initiative Presentation   

 
C. 4980 Garnet St #15-181 APN: 034-043-16 

Design Permit and Variance request for a garage addition to be located in the front yard 
setback area of an existing residence in the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) Zoning District.  
This project is in the Coastal Zone but does not require a Coastal Development Permit.  
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 

8.B.1

Packet Pg. 29

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 A

ct
io

n
 M

in
u

te
s 

o
f 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

6 
 (

12
77

 :
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 A

ct
io

n
 M

in
u

te
s 

2/
4/

16
)



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION MINUTES – February 4, 2016 2 
 

Property Owner: David Aaron  
Representative: Chris Sandman, filed 11/4/15 

RESULT: APPROVED [4 TO 0] 

MOVER: Gayle Ortiz, Commissioner 

SECONDER: Susan Westman, Commissioner 

AYES: Ortiz, Newman, Welch, Westman 

RECUSED: Smith 

 
D. 115 San Jose Avenue #15-188 APN: 035-221-17 

Conceptual Review of a proposed Master Use Permit with 11 new residential units and a 
parking management plan for the Capitola Mercantile located in the CV (Central Village) 
Zoning District. 
This project is in the Coastal Zone but does not require a Coastal Development Permit at 
the conceptual review stage. 
Environmental Determination: N/A 
Property Owner: Southstar PM 
Representative: Thacher & Thompson Architects 

Feedback provided – no action taken. 

 
E. Zoning Code Update - Initiation of Public Review   

6. DIRECTOR'S REPORT 

7. COMMISSION COMMUNICATIONS 

8. ADJOURNMENT 

8.B.1

Packet Pg. 30

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 A

ct
io

n
 M

in
u

te
s 

o
f 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
4,

 2
01

6 
 (

12
77

 :
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
 A

ct
io

n
 M

in
u

te
s 

2/
4/

16
)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF FEBRUARY 11, 2016

FROM: Finance Department

SUBJECT: Receive the Quarterly Financial Reports - Second Quarter Budget and First 
Quarter Sales Tax Report 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive Reports.  

DISCUSSION: The attached quarterly reports contain information for the following dates:

 Second Quarter Budget Report: October 1, 2015 to December 31, 2015.
 First Quarter Sales Tax Report: July 1 to September 30, 2015.

Detailed information on both subjects can be found in the attached documents.

FISCAL IMPACT: This action is administrative and should not result in a financial impact.

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Budget Report Second Quarter FY 15/16
2. Sales Tax First Quarter FY15/16

Report Prepared By:  Mark Welch
Finance Director

8.C

Packet Pg. 31



 
 
Overview: 
This report summarizes the City’s overall financial position for the current fiscal year through December 2015.  
Except as noted below, revenue and operating expenditures are generally consistent with annual projections.       
 
 

 

Revenue  
 

 Budget Actual 

Amount 

Percentage  

Received 

 Prev Year 

Actual Amount 

 

Annual % 

Change 

 

  

Charges for services 1,885,900 1,008,524 53%   933,838 8% 

Fines and forfeitures 720,000 326,643 45%   373,390 -13% 

Intergovernmental revenues 257,573 136,123 53%   184,450 -26% 

Licenses and permits 247,950 119,490 48%   121,479 -2% 

Other revenues 67,400 48,041 71%   45,647 5% 

Taxes 11,319,500 4,086,257 36%   4,398,943 -7% 

Business license taxes 283,700 115,372 41%   100,177 15% 

Franchise taxes 526,900 140,820 27%   135,433 4% 

Other Taxes 50,000           28,500  57%              33,153  -14% 

Property Taxes 1,972,500 1,004,782 51%   944,797 6% 

Sales and use taxes 5,325,900 1,500,699 28%   1,948,978 -23% 

Sales and use taxes - District 2,164,000 704,321 33%   688,559 2% 

Transient occupancy taxes 1,280,200 707,136 55%   648,022 9% 

Use of money & property 59,100 10,127 17%   11,750 -14% 

Grand Total 14,841,123 5,850,577 39%   6,169,674 -5% 
 
 

The City’s major revenue sources continue to be strong. The three largest portions of the City’s revenue collections 
are above budget. With the unwinding of the Triple-flip, our sales tax collections show close to a $500,000 decrease 
due to the In-lieu payment being decreased. The City will collected most of the decrease in August with the final 
true-up payment. Removing the triple flip from the equation Sales tax have grown by 4% with a budgeted increase 
of 2.5%. Property Tax collections have increased by 6% while we budget 3%.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Budget Report 

Second Quarter – FY15/16 

8.C.1

Packet Pg. 32

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 R
ep

o
rt

 S
ec

o
n

d
 Q

u
ar

te
r 

F
Y

 1
5/

16
  (

12
12

 :
 S

ec
o

n
d

 Q
u

ar
te

r 
B

u
d

g
et

 a
n

d
 F

ir
st

 Q
u

ar
te

r 
S

al
es

 T
ax

)



 
Expenses by Department 
 

  2015/16 Budget 
Actual 
Amount 

Prev Year 
Actual Amount 

 

Change 
from Prior 
Year 

Community Development 
                       
778,969  

               
369,081  

                  
327,559   

             
41,522  

Culture and Recreation 
                    
1,679,284  

               
894,194  

                  
813,297   

             
80,897  

General Government 
                    
2,546,528  

           
1,235,723  

              
1,101,468   

           
134,255  

Transfers 
                    
2,459,626  

           
1,394,513  

                  
812,937   

           
581,576  

Public Safety 
                    
6,333,000  

           
3,254,252  

              
2,969,149   

           
285,103  

Transportation 
                    
1,717,465  

               
819,221  

                  
776,406   

             
42,816  

Grand Total 15,514,872 7,966,983 6,800,815  1,166,169 
 

 
 
 
 
Expenses by Category 
 

  
2015/16 
Budget 

Actual Amount 
Prev Year 
Actual Amount 

 

Change from 
Prior Year 

Capital outlay 5,000 0 0  0 

Contract services 2,789,750 1,391,671 1,353,796  37,875 

Grants and Subsidies 277,296 132,889 123,965  8,924 

Internal service fund 
charges 

954,500 477,250 425,324 
 

51,927 

Other financing uses 2,459,626 1,394,513 812,037  582,476 

Personnel 8,383,075 4,241,984 3,820,153  421,831 

Employee benefits 2,548,243 1,556,380 1,109,767  446,613 

Wages and overtime 5,834,832 2,685,604 2,710,386  -24,782 

Supplies 552,400 283,595 229,038  54,558 

Training & Memberships 93,225 45,081 36,503  8,579 

Grand Total 15,514,872 7,966,983 6,800,815  1,166,169 

 
 
Our Expenses continue to track with the Adopted Budget.  The increase from the prior year can be attributed to our 
yearly payment of the Unfunded Actuarial Liability to CalPERS. As the year progresses the Employee Benefit line 
item will not grow as quickly since we are not making monthly payments. The transfer line item is transferred from 
the General Fund on a Semi Annual basis.  
 
 

 

8.C.1

Packet Pg. 33

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 B

u
d

g
et

 R
ep

o
rt

 S
ec

o
n

d
 Q

u
ar

te
r 

F
Y

 1
5/

16
  (

12
12

 :
 S

ec
o

n
d

 Q
u

ar
te

r 
B

u
d

g
et

 a
n

d
 F

ir
st

 Q
u

ar
te

r 
S

al
es

 T
ax

)



 
 

            Sales Tax Revenue Report 
             First Quarter – Fiscal Year 15/16 

 

 
Total sales tax receipts for the first quarter of FY15/16 were $1,581,986, which is $22,386 or 1.4% over 
budget and $61,230 or 4% higher than the prior year.  The Bradley-Burns component generated $1,033,965 in 
revenues and is $21,565 or 2.1% over budget and $46,268 or 4.7% higher than the prior year.  Measure D 
produced $274,260 in receipts, which is $660 or 0.2% over budget and $7,354 or 2.8% more than the first 
quarter of last year.  Measure O contributed $273,761 in revenues, which is $161 or 0.1% over budget and 
$7,608 or 2.9% higher than the prior year.  The December in lieu sales tax payment was 75% below budget 
due to the end of the triple flip.  This shortfall will be made up in August 2016 when the final triple flip 
payment is made.  Additionally, the 1% Bradley-Burns rate is restored as of January 1, 2016, with the 
associated receipts coming in March 2016.  A table and graph showing the first quarter sales tax results are 
shown below. 

Description FY13/14 
Actual

FY14/15 
Actual

FY15/16 
Budget

FY15/16 
Actual Amount % Amount %

Bradley Burns 969,130$     987,697$     1,012,400$  1,033,965$  21,565$     2.1% 46,268$     4.7%
In Lieu Sales Tax (Dec)* 743,141$     675,582$     660,700$     166,834$     (493,866)$  -74.7% (508,748)$  -75.3%

Measure D 259,765$     266,906$     273,600$     274,260$     660$          0.2% 7,354$       2.8%
Measure O 251,779$     266,153$     273,600$     273,761$     161$          0.1% 7,608$       2.9%

2,223,815$  2,196,338$  2,220,300$  1,748,820$  (471,480)$  -21.2% (447,518)$  -20.4%

First Quarter Sales Tax Revenue Comparison

Actual vs. Budget Actual vs. Prior Year

*FY15/16 December in lieu payment is for one quarter only (April – June 2015), not four quarters as in prior years due to the end of the triple 
flip. 
 

$969,130 

$743,141 

$259,765  $251,779 

$987,697 

$675,582 

$266,906  $266,153 

$1,033,965 

$166,834 

$274,260  $273,761 

BRADLEY BURNS IN LIEU SALES TAX (DEC)* MEASURE D MEASURE O

First Quarter Sales Tax Revenue

FY13/14 Actual FY14/15 Actual FY15/16 Actual

 

8.C.2

Packet Pg. 34

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 S

al
es

 T
ax

 F
ir

st
 Q

u
ar

te
r 

F
Y

15
/1

6 
 (

12
12

 :
 S

ec
o

n
d

 Q
u

ar
te

r 
B

u
d

g
et

 a
n

d
 F

ir
st

 Q
u

ar
te

r 
S

al
es

 T
ax

)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF FEBRUARY 11, 2016

FROM: City Manager Department

SUBJECT: Deny Liability Claims and Forward to the City's Liability Insurance Carrier 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Deny liability claims and forward to the City's liability insurance 
carrier.

DISCUSSION: 

1.  Carrie Cox has filed a liability claim against the City in the amount of $3,794.50.

2.  Tuka Gafari has filed a liability claim against the City in the amount of $551,888.

Report Prepared By:  Liz Nichols
Executive Assistant to the City Manager

8.D

Packet Pg. 35



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF FEBRUARY 11, 2016

FROM: Community Development

SUBJECT: Presentation of Capitola Branch Library Conceptual Renderings 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Receive graphic.

BACKGROUND: The City of Capitola is required to build a new public library to replace the 
existing 4,320 square foot library, housed in a modular, temporary building which opened in 
1999. The current facility is outdated, undersized to serve the community’s needs, and is in a 
state of disrepair.

The City entered into a contract with the County of Santa Cruz in 2011 and deposited $2.6M of 
redevelopment monies into a County-held trust account to help fund a future library. The 
contract requires the City to begin construction of a minimum 7,000 square-foot library by June 
30, 2018.

The Santa Cruz Public Library System adopted a Facility Master Plan in March, 2013. That plan 
recommended Capitola’s current facility be replaced with a new 12,000 – 15,000 square-foot 
library. The Master Plan estimated the cost of such a new library at $10.2 – $12.9M.
On September 10 2015, the City Council authorized a task order with Anderson-Brule Architects 
to initiate the public design process for the new Capitola Branch Library. A public workshop was 
held on October 28, 2016, to engage residents and solicit ideas on library design options.

DISCUSSION: This is a presentation by Anderson-Brule Architects to unveil inspirational 
renderings of the new library. The form and design of the renderings are based on public input 
received during the October workshop.  

The purpose of the renderings is to provide the public and decision-makers with a conceptual 
idea of what a new library could look like prior to a tax measure being placed on the ballot to 
help fund a new library. The renderings would also be on display at the “Sweet 16” library 
celebration scheduled for March 5, 2016.

It is important to note that the City Council is not approving or committing to a final library 
design. A formal design process and additional community meetings would be held to refine the 
exterior design and interior programming once funding is secured. 

FISCAL IMPACT: None.

Report Prepared By:  Rich Grunow
Community Development Director

9.A

Packet Pg. 36



Presentation of Library Renderings 
February 11, 2016

9.A

Packet Pg. 37



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF FEBRUARY 11, 2016

FROM: Capitola Police Department

SUBJECT: Appeal on Surf School Permit Denial 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Accept report on the appeal of a denial of a Surf School Permit and 
provide direction on the following: 

Options:

1. Deny the appeal; or
2. Uphold the appeal and direct staff to prepare an Ordinance amending Municipal Code 

Section 9.30.020 to permit five surf schools to be introduced at the February 25, 2016 
Council meeting; and 

3. If appeal is upheld, amend the City Administrative Policy, I-34, Section III (B) to permit 
five Surf Schools.

BACKGROUND: In 2008, the Capitola City Council adopted Chapter 9.30 of the Capitola 
Municipal Code (Code) to regulate Surf Schools that operate at specific beaches and surf 
breaks within control of the Capitola Police Department. That Ordinance called for a maximum 
of four Surf School Permits to be issued each calendar year. The purpose of the Surf School 
Permits is to facilitate a safe water experience for experienced surfers, instructors, students and 
visitors who share the beach. 

Due to increased interest in operating Surf Schools, in early 2015 the City Council approved an 
Uncodified Ordinance to allow a maximum of five Surf Schools to operate for 2015 only. Except 
as amended by the Uncodified Ordinance, all other provisions of Chapter 9.30 regulating Surf 
Schools including, but not limited to, the number of Surf School students who can be in the 
water at any one time (eight students), were unchanged and remain in full force and effect. The 
City Council also adopted a revised Administrative Policy I-34 to assist in the issuance of Surf 
School Permits. At its November 12, 2015 meeting, the City Council decided to allow the 
Uncodified Ordinance Amendment that allowed five Surf Schools to expire.  This resulted in the 
Ordinance reverting back to four Surf School Permits being issued. 

DISCUSSION: The Police Department is charged with the issuance of Surf School Permits in 
accordance with Administrative Policy I-34. Applications are received and reviewed. Permits are 
valid for one calendar year beginning on January 1st and expiring on December 31st of the 
same year they were issued. The time period to submit a completed application for the 
upcoming permit year starts December 1st and closes at noon on December 31st. Completed 
and submitted applications are reviewed by the Chief of Police who issues permits based on a 
competitive assessment of the qualifications of the applicant, the applicant's past history of 
compliance with applicable regulations, the applicant's history of successfully operating a Surf 
School, and the City's adopted "Local Vendor Preference" policies. 

9.B

Packet Pg. 38



Appeal on Surf School Permit Denial 
February 11, 2016

A separate questionnaire was developed to assist in the competitive assessment process. The 
responses to the questions were evaluated by three evaluators outside of the Police 
Department and independently scored. Applications were not provided to the evaluators. Names 
and business locations were redacted to ensure an impartial assessment process. 

After reviewing the five applications, four applications were awarded permits. One of the 
applicants, Capitola Surf and Paddle located at 208 San Jose Avenue, did not receive a Surf 
School Permit. Capitola Surf and Paddle was issued a permit for 2015 and operated 
successfully without a citation. Staff has contacted Capitola Surf and Paddle to remind them of 
certain regulations, but none of these violations have risen to the level of enforcement actions or 
permit reviews.

The maximum students allowed at any one time are eight. Staff recommends keeping the 
number of students at eight and all other current provisions in the Code. Staff continues to 
communicate and engage all the permitted schools to improve upon our current regulations and 
processes. Upon being notified that they were not being issued a permit for 2016, Capitola Surf 
and Paddle filed an appeal in accordance with Code Section 2.52. 

If the Council decides to uphold the appeal and allow 5 surf schools to operate, then it would be 
appropriate to direct staff return to the Council at its February 25, 2016 meeting to consider 
introduction of an Ordinance amending the Code accordingly; and also to amend City 
Administrative Policy I-34 to make it consistent therewith.  

FISCAL IMPACT: None.

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Jason Alaniz Surf School Permit Appeal (PDF)
2. Draft Surf Permit Admin Policy (DOCX)
3. Draft Ordinance Change for Surf School Regulations (DOC)
4. Capitola Surf Paddle 2016 application (PDF)

Report Prepared By:  Rudy Escalante
Police Chief

……

9.B

Packet Pg. 39



Appeal on Surf School Permit Denial 
February 11, 2016

DRAFT
ORDINANCE NO. ___

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA
AMENDING SECTION 9.30.020 (B) TO THE CAPITOLA MUNICIPAL CODE PERTAINING TO 

REGULATION OF SURF SCHOOLS

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF CAPITOLA AS FOLLOWS:
Section 9.30.020 (B) is hereby amended to the Capitola Municipal Code to read as follows:

“Chapter 9.30"

SURF SCHOOL REGULATIONS

Sections:
9.30.010 Application of Chapter
9.30.020 Surf School Regulations
9.30.030 Surf School Permits and Permit Fees
9.30.040 Indemnification

9.30.010 Application of Chapter.   

This chapter shall apply to all surf schools that operate in the City of Capitola to the 
extent that they use Capitola beaches and surf breaks for which Capitola lifeguards and the 
Capitola Police Department have health, safety and rescue responsibility.  Said beaches and 
surf breaks include Capitola Main Beach, Hooper’s Beach, First Jetty Break, Main Peak Break, 
Hooper’s Break and Toes Over Break, as designated on the map attached to this chapter and 
incorporated herein. As used in this chapter, the term “surf school” is defined as any person, 
business or other entity, which, for compensation, teaches individuals how to board surf, body 
surf, boogie board or kayak surf.

9.30.020 Surf School Regulations.

A. Student to Instructor Ratio.  The maximum student to instructor ratio for surf schools 
while operating on Capitola beaches and surf breaks shall be 4 students per one (1) 
instructor.

B. Maximum Total of Surf School Students/Surf Schools.  The total number of surf school 
students using Capitola beaches and surf breaks during any single period of time shall 
not exceed 8 students. A maximum of five (5) surf schools will be licensed and permitted 
within the City of Capitola to conduct surf lessons on Capitola beaches each year. 

 
C. Surf School Instructor Qualifications.  Every surf school instructor who uses Capitola 

beaches and surf breaks to instruct surf school students shall at a minimum currently 
have the following certifications and qualifications: Basic First Aid; CPR; Department of 
Justice (DOJ) Live Scan fingerprint clearance and criminal history check.

D. Surf School Uniforms. Surf schools which conduct operations on Capitola beaches and 
surf breaks shall, while conducting said operations, assure that all students and 
instructors wear uniform shirts or vests identifying their respective surf schools. Said 

9.B

Packet Pg. 40



Appeal on Surf School Permit Denial 
February 11, 2016

shirts or vests shall be sufficiently distinctive in color or design so as to allow Capitola 
lifeguards and police officers to differentiate between surf schools. The City when issuing 
surf school permits may designate the color shirt or vest to be employed by a surf school 
for this purpose. It is recommended the surf schools utilize the same colored jerseys as 
assigned in the City of Santa Cruz.

E. Surf School Equipment.  Surf schools which conduct operations on Capitola beaches 
and surf breaks shall, while conducting said operations, use only the following types of 
equipment: soft foam boards with leashes for beginners; “hard boards” with leashes for 
intermediate and advanced lessons at instructor’s discretion, provided that in any such 
“hard board” lesson session the student to instructor ratio shall not exceed two students 
per instructor.

 
F. Surf School Insurance.  Surf schools shall not be permitted to conduct operations on 

Capitola beaches and surf breaks unless and until they have provided to the City proof 
that they currently have in place liability insurance in an amount prescribed by City 
Council resolution as well as worker’s compensation insurance as required by state law. 
Surf schools shall also have a safety and evacuation plan on file.

G. Other Applicable Regulations.  Surf schools that conduct operations on Capitola 
beaches and surf breaks shall comply with all other applicable federal, state and local 
statutes and regulations including but not limited to Capitola Municipal Code Chapter 
8.64 pertaining to water sports and equipment, Capitola Municipal Code Chapter 5.04 
pertaining to business license taxes and applicable California Labor Code statutes 
governing employment including statutes governing wages, hours and worker’s 
compensation.

9.30.030 Surf School Permits and Permit Fees. 
 

A. Permits.  No surf school shall conduct operations on Capitola beaches or surf breaks 
without first obtaining a permit to do so from the Capitola Police Department. The permit 
shall assure compliance with the surf school regulations set forth in Section 9.30.020 
and at a minimum shall specify the following:

1. The maximum number of instructors and students the permitted surf school 
may have while conducting its operations.

2. The specific locations at which the permitted surf school may conduct its 
operations.

3. The type and color of uniform shirt or vest to be worn by surf school 
instructors and students.

4. The types of equipment that may be used by the permitted surf school while 
conducting its operations on Capitola beaches and surf breaks.

B. Permit Fees.  The Capitola Police Department shall assess permit fees to surf schools, 
which shall be due and payable in full at the time of permit issuance. The amount of the 
fee shall be set by City Council resolution and shall correspond to the costs incurred by 
the City in administering this ordinance, regulating surf schools in accordance with this 
ordinance and providing public safety services attributable exclusively to the operation of 
surf schools on City beaches and surf breaks. To this end, to the extent it is necessary 
for the City to employ lifeguards or other law enforcement personnel that would not 
otherwise be required but for the conduct of surf school operations on Capitola beaches 

9.B

Packet Pg. 41



Appeal on Surf School Permit Denial 
February 11, 2016

and surf breaks, as part of its permit fee assessment the City may recover from those 
surf schools on a pro rata basis the costs it incurs employing said lifeguards or law 
enforcement personnel.

9.30.040 Indemnification.

No surf school shall conduct operations on Capitola beaches and surf breaks without 
first executing an agreement to indemnify the City against and hold the City harmless from all 
claims for death, personal injury or property damage caused or allegedly caused by the surf 
school’s operations. The indemnification/hold harmless agreement shall be in a form approved 
by the City Attorney. Surf school liability insurance procured by surf schools to comply with 
Section 9.30.020(G) shall name the City as an additional insured.

This Ordinance was introduced on the  ____ day of, ___, and was passed and adopted 
by the City Council of the City of Capitola on the ____ day of, ___, by the following vote:
  
AYES:
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  
DISQUALIFIED:  

APPROVED: __________________________
Ed Bottorff, Mayor

ATTEST:

______________________, CMC
Susan Sneddon, City Clerk

9.B

Packet Pg. 42



JAN 2'0 2015 
CITY OF CAPITOLA 

CITY CLERK 
Dear Council , 

My name is Jason Alaniz. I am the owner of Capitola Surf and Paddle, located in Capitola 
Village at 208 San Jose Avenue. This letter is to officially appeal the recent decision brought 
forth January 11 , 2016 regarding the issuing of Surf School Instruction Permits for 2016. The 
decision excludes my business from providing this service to my guests. I am seeking a review 
and reversal of this recent decision to include my business. 

As you all are aware, there was conflict with more surf schools applying for permits than 
available, causing the council to increase the number of allowable schools for 2015. As the end 
of the year approached, the decision was made to revert back to four surf school permits. 

Additionally, there was a new Surf School Permit revision written by the Capitola Police 
Department and approved by the council to provide preference to businesses located in 
Capitola. However, 3 of the 4 available permits were granted to surf schools outside of the area 
in Santa Cruz and Monterey, while our business, located in the heart of the Capitola Village, 
was excluded. 

Capitola Surf and Paddle is proud to be beginning its fourth year of business. Last year we 
applied for and were granted a surf school permit. We invested in equipment, training , and 
certifications, as well as staff to support this area of the business and we successfully provided 
surf instruction throughout the year. It has been my goal to provide great customer service and 
to be able to respond to regular requests we receive for surf lessons. Should we not be able to 
offer this service it would impact our business from a financial standpoint, impact our staffing, 
and greatly reduce the convenience to our guests, who are also guests of the City. The 
diminished availability for this service not only reflects negatively as a local business but as a 
destination City that should have services and products readi ly available. 

In summary, my appeal for reconsideration is based on a number of factors: 

1. The decision goes against direct city policy to give preference to local business. 
2. We are a Capitola Village local business serving locals and tourists year round . There is 

a local demand for th is service and it makes sense that we would be able to provide it. 
3. This decision will have a direct economic impact on my business and employees. 

The goal that I share with the city is that of providing a great experience to the guests of 
Capitola. We are honored to be able to provide a great service and make our city so enjoyable. 

With that, we kindly request a surf license. 

Sincerely, 

C;o~~ 

9.B.1

Packet Pg. 43

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 J

as
o

n
 A

la
n

iz
 S

u
rf

 S
ch

o
o

l P
er

m
it

 A
p

p
ea

l  
(1

37
0 

: 
A

p
p

ea
l o

n
 S

u
rf

 S
ch

o
o

l P
er

m
it

 D
en

ia
l)



ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY

Number: I-34
Issued: March 12, 2015
Revised: _________
Jurisdiction: City Council

SURF SCHOOL PERMITS

PURPOSE

The purpose of this policy is to provide a process for the annual review and issuance of surf 
school permits that are issued within the City limits of Capitola, implementing Capitola 
Municipal Code section 9.30. Surf schools that are permitted to conduct operations on Capitola 
beaches and surf breaks shall comply with all other applicable federal, state and local statutes and 
regulations including but not limited to Capitola Municipal Code Chapter 8.64 pertaining to water 
sports and equipment, Capitola Municipal Code Chapter 5.04 pertaining to business license taxes 
and applicable California Labor Code statutes governing employment including statutes 
governing wages, hours and worker’s compensation.

I. POLICY

No surf school shall conduct operations on Capitola beaches or surf breaks without first obtaining 
a permit to do so from the Capitola police department. The permit shall assure compliance with 
the surf school regulations set forth in Section 9.30.020 and other requirements determined 
necessary to comply with public safety and local, state or federal law. 

II. PROCEDURE

A. The Capitola police department shall assess permit fees to surf schools, which shall be due and 
payable in full at the time of permit issuance. The amount of the fee shall be established in the 
City’s fee schedule and shall correspond to the costs incurred by the city in regulating surf 
schools in accordance with this policy and providing public safety services attributable 
exclusively to the operation of surf schools on city beaches and surf breaks. 

To the extent it is necessary for the city to employ lifeguards or other public safety personnel that 
would not otherwise be required but for the conduct of surf school operations on Capitola beaches 
and surf breaks, as part of its permit fee assessment the city may recover from those surf schools 
on a pro rata basis the costs it incurs employing said lifeguards or law enforcement personnel. 

B. Permit Issuance. Permits are valid for one calendar year beginning on January 1st and expiring 
on December 31st of the same year they were issued. The time period to submit a completed
application for the upcoming permit year starts December 1 and closes at noon on December 31st. 
Completed and submitted applications will be reviewed by the Chief of Police who will issue no 
more than fivefour permits based on a competitive assessment of the qualifications of the 
applicant, the applicant’s past history of compliance with applicable regulations, the applicant’s 
history of successfully operating a Surf School, and the City’s adopted  “Local Vendor 
Preference” policies. Those permits shall be valid for one year and may be renewed with a 
completed application during the application period upon a finding by the Police Chief that the 
permit holder has complied with their permit conditions and applicable law.

9.B.2

Packet Pg. 44

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 S
u

rf
 P

er
m

it
 A

d
m

in
 P

o
lic

y 
 (

13
70

 :
 A

p
p

ea
l o

n
 S

u
rf

 S
ch

o
o

l P
er

m
it

 D
en

ia
l)



The Police Chief’s decision regarding the award of a Surf School permit may be appealed by an 
affected party to the City Manager.  The City Manager’s decision may be appealed to City 
Council pursuant to CMC 2.52.

If at any time fewer than fivefour Surf School permits have been issued, the remaining permits 
will be issued on a first come first served basis to qualified applicants upon submission of a 
complete application.  

E. Permit Term. Surf School permits expire on Dec. 31st of the year issued.

III. REVOCATION

The City Manager shall have the right to revoke or suspend Surf School permits for: failure to 
comply with the terms of a Surf School permit, failure to comply with applicable laws, and/or 
failure to operate a Surf School. The City Manager’s decision to revoke a permit may be appealed 
to City Council pursuant to CMC 2.52.

This policy is approved and authorized by

___________________________________
Jamie Goldstein
City Manager

9.B.2

Packet Pg. 45

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 S
u

rf
 P

er
m

it
 A

d
m

in
 P

o
lic

y 
 (

13
70

 :
 A

p
p

ea
l o

n
 S

u
rf

 S
ch

o
o

l P
er

m
it

 D
en

ia
l)



DRAFT
ORDINANCE NO. ___

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CAPITOLA
AMENDING SECTION 9.30.020 (B) TO THE CAPITOLA MUNICIPAL CODE PERTAINING TO 

REGULATION OF SURF SCHOOLS

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF CAPITOLA AS FOLLOWS:
Section 9.30.020 (B) is hereby amended to the Capitola Municipal Code to read as follows:

“Chapter 9.30

SURF SCHOOL REGULATIONS

Sections:
9.30.010 Application of Chapter
9.30.020 Surf School Regulations
9.30.030 Surf School Permits and Permit Fees
9.30.040 Indemnification

9.30.010 Application of Chapter.   

This chapter shall apply to all surf schools that operate in the City of Capitola to the 
extent that they use Capitola beaches and surf breaks for which Capitola lifeguards and the 
Capitola Police Department have health, safety and rescue responsibility.  Said beaches and 
surf breaks include Capitola Main Beach, Hooper’s Beach, First Jetty Break, Main Peak Break, 
Hooper’s Break and Toes Over Break, as designated on the map attached to this chapter and 
incorporated herein. As used in this chapter, the term “surf school” is defined as any person, 
business or other entity, which, for compensation, teaches individuals how to board surf, body 
surf, boogie board or kayak surf.

9.30.020 Surf School Regulations.

A. Student to Instructor Ratio.  The maximum student to instructor ratio for surf schools 
while operating on Capitola beaches and surf breaks shall be 4 students per one (1) 
instructor.

B. Maximum Total of Surf School Students/Surf Schools.  The total number of surf school 
students using Capitola beaches and surf breaks during any single period of time shall 
not exceed 8 students. A maximum of five (5) surf schools will be licensed and permitted 
within the City of Capitola to conduct surf lessons on Capitola beaches each year. 

 
C. Surf School Instructor Qualifications.  Every surf school instructor who uses Capitola 

beaches and surf breaks to instruct surf school students shall at a minimum currently 
have the following certifications and qualifications: Basic First Aid; CPR; Department of 
Justice (DOJ) Live Scan fingerprint clearance and criminal history check.

D. Surf School Uniforms. Surf schools which conduct operations on Capitola beaches and 
surf breaks shall, while conducting said operations, assure that all students and 
instructors wear uniform shirts or vests identifying their respective surf schools. Said 
shirts or vests shall be sufficiently distinctive in color or design so as to allow Capitola 
lifeguards and police officers to differentiate between surf schools. The City when issuing 
surf school permits may designate the color shirt or vest to be employed by a surf school 

9.B.3

Packet Pg. 46

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 C

h
an

g
e 

fo
r 

S
u

rf
 S

ch
o

o
l R

eg
u

la
ti

o
n

s 
 (

13
70

 :
 A

p
p

ea
l o

n
 S

u
rf

 S
ch

o
o

l P
er

m
it

 D
en

ia
l)



ORDINANCE NO. _____

for this purpose. It is recommended the surf schools utilize the same colored jerseys as 
assigned in the City of Santa Cruz.

E. Surf School Equipment.  Surf schools which conduct operations on Capitola beaches 
and surf breaks shall, while conducting said operations, use only the following types of 
equipment: soft foam boards with leashes for beginners; “hard boards” with leashes for 
intermediate and advanced lessons at instructor’s discretion, provided that in any such 
“hard board” lesson session the student to instructor ratio shall not exceed two students 
per instructor.

 
F. Surf School Insurance.  Surf schools shall not be permitted to conduct operations on 

Capitola beaches and surf breaks unless and until they have provided to the City proof 
that they currently have in place liability insurance in an amount prescribed by City 
Council resolution as well as worker’s compensation insurance as required by state law. 
Surf schools shall also have a safety and evacuation plan on file.

G. Other Applicable Regulations.  Surf schools that conduct operations on Capitola 
beaches and surf breaks shall comply with all other applicable federal, state and local 
statutes and regulations including but not limited to Capitola Municipal Code Chapter 
8.64 pertaining to water sports and equipment, Capitola Municipal Code Chapter 5.04 
pertaining to business license taxes and applicable California Labor Code statutes 
governing employment including statutes governing wages, hours and worker’s 
compensation.

9.30.030 Surf School Permits and Permit Fees. 
 

A. Permits.  No surf school shall conduct operations on Capitola beaches or surf breaks 
without first obtaining a permit to do so from the Capitola Police Department.  The permit 
shall assure compliance with the surf school regulations set forth in Section 9.30.020 
and at a minimum shall specify the following:

1. The maximum number of instructors and students the permitted surf school 
may have while conducting its operations.

2. The specific locations at which the permitted surf school may conduct its 
operations.

3. The type and color of uniform shirt or vest to be worn by surf school 
instructors and students.

4. The types of equipment that may be used by the permitted surf school while 
conducting its operations on Capitola beaches and surf breaks.

B. Permit Fees.  The Capitola Police Department shall assess permit fees to surf schools, 
which shall be due and payable in full at the time of permit issuance. The amount of the 
fee shall be set by City Council resolution and shall correspond to the costs incurred by 
the City in administering this ordinance, regulating surf schools in accordance with this 
ordinance and providing public safety services attributable exclusively to the operation of 
surf schools on City beaches and surf breaks. To this end, to the extent it is necessary 
for the City to employ lifeguards or other law enforcement personnel that would not 
otherwise be required but for the conduct of surf school operations on Capitola beaches 
and surf breaks, as part of its permit fee assessment the City may recover from those 
surf schools on a pro rata basis the costs it incurs employing said lifeguards or law 
enforcement personnel.

9.30.040 Indemnification.

9.B.3

Packet Pg. 47

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 C

h
an

g
e 

fo
r 

S
u

rf
 S

ch
o

o
l R

eg
u

la
ti

o
n

s 
 (

13
70

 :
 A

p
p

ea
l o

n
 S

u
rf

 S
ch

o
o

l P
er

m
it

 D
en

ia
l)



ORDINANCE NO. _____

No surf school shall conduct operations on Capitola beaches and surf breaks without 
first executing an agreement to indemnify the City against and hold the City harmless from all 
claims for death, personal injury or property damage caused or allegedly caused by the surf 
school’s operations. The indemnification/hold harmless agreement shall be in a form approved 
by the City Attorney. Surf school liability insurance procured by surf schools to comply with 
Section 9.30.020(G) shall name the City as an additional insured.”

This ordinance was introduced on the on the ____ day of, ___,  and was passed and 
adopted by the City Council of the City of Capitola on the ____ day of, ___, by the following 
vote:
  
AYES:
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  
DISQUALIFIED:  

APPROVED: __________________________
Ed Bottorff, Mayor

ATTEST:

______________________, CMC
Susan Sneddon, City Clerk

9.B.3

Packet Pg. 48

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 C

h
an

g
e 

fo
r 

S
u

rf
 S

ch
o

o
l R

eg
u

la
ti

o
n

s 
 (

13
70

 :
 A

p
p

ea
l o

n
 S

u
rf

 S
ch

o
o

l P
er

m
it

 D
en

ia
l)



ORDINANCE NO. _____

CAPITOLA SURF BREAK MAP

Capitola Main 
Peak

1st Jetty

Toes Over

9.B.3

Packet Pg. 49

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 D

ra
ft

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 C

h
an

g
e 

fo
r 

S
u

rf
 S

ch
o

o
l R

eg
u

la
ti

o
n

s 
 (

13
70

 :
 A

p
p

ea
l o

n
 S

u
rf

 S
ch

o
o

l P
er

m
it

 D
en

ia
l)



9.B.4

Packet Pg. 50

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 S
u

rf
 P

ad
d

le
 2

01
6 

ap
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
13

70
 :

 A
p

p
ea

l o
n

 S
u

rf
 S

ch
o

o
l P

er
m

it
 D

en
ia

l)



9.B.4

Packet Pg. 51

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 S
u

rf
 P

ad
d

le
 2

01
6 

ap
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
13

70
 :

 A
p

p
ea

l o
n

 S
u

rf
 S

ch
o

o
l P

er
m

it
 D

en
ia

l)



9.B.4

Packet Pg. 52

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 S
u

rf
 P

ad
d

le
 2

01
6 

ap
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
13

70
 :

 A
p

p
ea

l o
n

 S
u

rf
 S

ch
o

o
l P

er
m

it
 D

en
ia

l)



9.B.4

Packet Pg. 53

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 S
u

rf
 P

ad
d

le
 2

01
6 

ap
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
13

70
 :

 A
p

p
ea

l o
n

 S
u

rf
 S

ch
o

o
l P

er
m

it
 D

en
ia

l)



9.B.4

Packet Pg. 54

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 S
u

rf
 P

ad
d

le
 2

01
6 

ap
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
13

70
 :

 A
p

p
ea

l o
n

 S
u

rf
 S

ch
o

o
l P

er
m

it
 D

en
ia

l)



9.B.4

Packet Pg. 55

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 S
u

rf
 P

ad
d

le
 2

01
6 

ap
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
13

70
 :

 A
p

p
ea

l o
n

 S
u

rf
 S

ch
o

o
l P

er
m

it
 D

en
ia

l)



9.B.4

Packet Pg. 56

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 S
u

rf
 P

ad
d

le
 2

01
6 

ap
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
13

70
 :

 A
p

p
ea

l o
n

 S
u

rf
 S

ch
o

o
l P

er
m

it
 D

en
ia

l)



9.B.4

Packet Pg. 57

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 S
u

rf
 P

ad
d

le
 2

01
6 

ap
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
13

70
 :

 A
p

p
ea

l o
n

 S
u

rf
 S

ch
o

o
l P

er
m

it
 D

en
ia

l)



9.B.4

Packet Pg. 58

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 S
u

rf
 P

ad
d

le
 2

01
6 

ap
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
13

70
 :

 A
p

p
ea

l o
n

 S
u

rf
 S

ch
o

o
l P

er
m

it
 D

en
ia

l)



9.B.4

Packet Pg. 59

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 S
u

rf
 P

ad
d

le
 2

01
6 

ap
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
13

70
 :

 A
p

p
ea

l o
n

 S
u

rf
 S

ch
o

o
l P

er
m

it
 D

en
ia

l)



9.B.4

Packet Pg. 60

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 S
u

rf
 P

ad
d

le
 2

01
6 

ap
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
13

70
 :

 A
p

p
ea

l o
n

 S
u

rf
 S

ch
o

o
l P

er
m

it
 D

en
ia

l)



9.B.4

Packet Pg. 61

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 S
u

rf
 P

ad
d

le
 2

01
6 

ap
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
13

70
 :

 A
p

p
ea

l o
n

 S
u

rf
 S

ch
o

o
l P

er
m

it
 D

en
ia

l)



9.B.4

Packet Pg. 62

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 S
u

rf
 P

ad
d

le
 2

01
6 

ap
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
13

70
 :

 A
p

p
ea

l o
n

 S
u

rf
 S

ch
o

o
l P

er
m

it
 D

en
ia

l)



9.B.4

Packet Pg. 63

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 S
u

rf
 P

ad
d

le
 2

01
6 

ap
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
13

70
 :

 A
p

p
ea

l o
n

 S
u

rf
 S

ch
o

o
l P

er
m

it
 D

en
ia

l)



9.B.4

Packet Pg. 64

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 S
u

rf
 P

ad
d

le
 2

01
6 

ap
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
13

70
 :

 A
p

p
ea

l o
n

 S
u

rf
 S

ch
o

o
l P

er
m

it
 D

en
ia

l)



9.B.4

Packet Pg. 65

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 S
u

rf
 P

ad
d

le
 2

01
6 

ap
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
13

70
 :

 A
p

p
ea

l o
n

 S
u

rf
 S

ch
o

o
l P

er
m

it
 D

en
ia

l)



9.B.4

Packet Pg. 66

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 S
u

rf
 P

ad
d

le
 2

01
6 

ap
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
13

70
 :

 A
p

p
ea

l o
n

 S
u

rf
 S

ch
o

o
l P

er
m

it
 D

en
ia

l)



9.B.4

Packet Pg. 67

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 S
u

rf
 P

ad
d

le
 2

01
6 

ap
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
13

70
 :

 A
p

p
ea

l o
n

 S
u

rf
 S

ch
o

o
l P

er
m

it
 D

en
ia

l)



9.B.4

Packet Pg. 68

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 S
u

rf
 P

ad
d

le
 2

01
6 

ap
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
13

70
 :

 A
p

p
ea

l o
n

 S
u

rf
 S

ch
o

o
l P

er
m

it
 D

en
ia

l)



9.B.4

Packet Pg. 69

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 S
u

rf
 P

ad
d

le
 2

01
6 

ap
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
13

70
 :

 A
p

p
ea

l o
n

 S
u

rf
 S

ch
o

o
l P

er
m

it
 D

en
ia

l)



9.B.4

Packet Pg. 70

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 S
u

rf
 P

ad
d

le
 2

01
6 

ap
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
13

70
 :

 A
p

p
ea

l o
n

 S
u

rf
 S

ch
o

o
l P

er
m

it
 D

en
ia

l)



9.B.4

Packet Pg. 71

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 S
u

rf
 P

ad
d

le
 2

01
6 

ap
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
13

70
 :

 A
p

p
ea

l o
n

 S
u

rf
 S

ch
o

o
l P

er
m

it
 D

en
ia

l)



9.B.4

Packet Pg. 72

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

ap
it

o
la

 S
u

rf
 P

ad
d

le
 2

01
6 

ap
p

lic
at

io
n

  (
13

70
 :

 A
p

p
ea

l o
n

 S
u

rf
 S

ch
o

o
l P

er
m

it
 D

en
ia

l)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF FEBRUARY 11, 2016

FROM: Community Development

SUBJECT: 115 San Jose Avenue - Conceptual Review of Mercantile Redevelopment 
Proposal 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Accept staff presentation and provide direction on conceptual 
review of the Master Use Permit with 11 new residential units and parking management plan. 

BACKGROUND: On September 3, 2009, the Planning Commission (Commission) provided 
feedback on a conceptual review for a different residential infill project on the Mercantile 
property. The previous project was three stories and exceeded the height limit by four feet. The 
design included a public promenade within the second story that aligned with Lawn Way and 
created pedestrian connectivity between San Jose Avenue and the Esplanade. The parking 
plan included 44 at-grade parking spaces, 42 of which utilized compact stacker parking.  

The Commission expressed several concerns with the 2009 proposal including height, scale, 
intensity of the use, parking, and the management of stacked parking within a commercial 
mixed use center. Further, the Commission requested a better understanding of how the 
proposed project would influence redevelopment of the Mercantile building in the future. The 
applicant did not proceed with the project. 

DISCUSSION: The applicant is proposing a conceptual infill project with 11 residential units 
(Attachment 1), a Master Use Permit for the Mercantile (Attachment 2), and a parking 
management plan for the entire site. The proposed Master Use Permit would allow the 7,110 
square feet of tenant space in the Mercantile to accommodate up to 4,400 square-feet of food 
and beverage uses in addition to 2,710 square feet of retail uses. Currently, 1,847 square-feet 
of food and beverage space is shared between Caruso’s, Cava Wine Bar, and the Atrium Café. 

The 11 new residential condominium units are proposed on the north end of the Mercantile 
parcel within the existing parking lot. The condominium project will be located over a new 7,450 
square foot covered parking garage. The site is within the floodplain, therefore no residential 
uses are allowed within the first level of the new structure. Two small lobbies are included in the 
first level, one at each entrance. The onsite parking would increase from 43 spaces to 49 
spaces with the introduction of 13 mechanical parking lifts. The applicant submitted a parking 
management plan that explains how the parking lift system will be managed. The applicant also 
included a parking study (Attachment 3) for the entire site that incorporates future uses through 
a Master Use Permit for the Mercantile.  

Planning staff had the parking management plan and parking study reviewed by a third party, 
Frederik Venter of Kimley-Horn. Mr. Venter reviewed both submittals and originally provided 
feedback that the study was conservative in its calculations (Attachment 4). Following initial 

9.C

Packet Pg. 73



115 San Jose Avenue 
February 11, 2016

feedback, staff asked the applicant if the site would no longer be utilized for public parking. The 
parking study states “A valet parking program is proposed which will insure that 36 spaces are 
always available for commercial uses and one space for (each) residential uses” without 
specifying if use will be limited to Mercantile residents and patrons. The applicant clarified that 
the parking would remain paid public parking not limited to Mercantile use only. Upon receiving 
the additional information, Mr. Venter, informed staff that in order to have onsite public parking 
the applicant would have to add a robust valet operations plan. In-lieu parking is not currently an 
option for the proposed use because the Council policy applies only to large village hotels with 
valet service.   

The 11 residential units are proposed within the second story of the new structure and would be 
accessed from a shared hallway that runs along the rear of the property. Each unit is a simple 
efficiency with a bed, living room, and bathroom. Six of the 11 units have a deck. The units 
range from 440 square feet to 730 square feet. The project would be 27-feet in height which 
complies with the Central Village height limit.

The conceptual design includes several elevations as viewed from the Esplanade and San Jose 
Avenue. The exterior finishes include cement plaster on the first story and vertical wood siding 
with shingle accents within the second story. The building has variation and relief along the 
second story due to the incorporation of private terraces.  

The conceptual review includes a request for a Master Use Permit for the Mercantile to allow 
administrative approvals for tenant occupancy. The Mercantile is unique within the central 
village due to its size, multi-tenant commercial mix, and onsite parking. Any new conditional use 
for the site typically requires a parking study to ensure the site can accommodate the parking 
demands of the proposed use. The initial investment of completing a parking study and applying 
for a conditional use permit is costly and has resulted in many prospective tenants locating 
elsewhere. The Mercantile owner would like to manage onsite uses within a Master Use Permit 
and remove the uncertainty for potential tenants.   

The most limiting development standard applicable to the Mercantile site is parking. To establish 
a maximum limit for intensified uses, such as food and beverage, the applicant completed a 
parking study which relies on parking standards developed by the Institute of Transportation 
Engineers (ITE). The parking study found that the site can handle 4,400 square feet of 
restaurant use on site with the remaining 2,710 square feet of tenant space utilized for retail or 
similar uses. The parking study included adequate parking for the 11 residential units. The study 
did not include onsite paid public parking. The following table summarizes the parking demand 
differences between the Capitola Zoning Code and the ITE Parking Generation Standards.  

Use Size Capitola Parking 
Requirement

ITE Parking 
Requirement

Restaurants 4,400 sf 1/60 sf
73 spaces

8.1/1000 sf
36 spaces

Retail 2,710 sf 1/240 sf
11 spaces

3.56/1000 sf
10 spaces

Studio Apartment 11 units 2.5/unit
28 spaces

1 per unit + 2
13 spaces

Spaces Required 112 spaces 59 spaces

9.C

Packet Pg. 74



115 San Jose Avenue 
February 11, 2016

The parking study also incorporates reductions for shared parking and multiple uses based on 
the peak parking demand for the residential, retail and restaurant. The peak demand for the site 
is identified in the study as 49 spaces on Saturday evenings. The project includes 49 onsite 
spaces.  

In conducting the conceptual review of this project, staff suggests the City Council focus their 
comments and direction on the overall project concept and vision. As a starting point, staff has 
identified several questions, which the Council may wish to consider while reviewing this project.  

1. Does the proposed architectural style compliment the village?
2. Is the proposal scale compatible with the surrounding development?
3. Is the frontage on San Jose Avenue and the Esplanade acceptable in its current form? 
4. Is there support for a Master Use Permit to allow development of additional 

restaurant/bar space inside the Mercantile?
5. Should the project include paid public parking in addition to serving residents and 

Mercantile visitors? 
6. Are mechanical parking stackers acceptable as proposed within the management plan? 

Planning Commission Direction: On February 4, 2016, the Commission reviewed the current 
conceptual plan. The Commission expressed unanimous concerns about the requested parking 
reduction, the effectiveness of the parking management plan, and the proposed Master Use 
Permit which would allow future bar and restaurant uses to occupy the Mercantile without a 
Conditional Use Permit.  Some Commissioners felt the proposal failed to address issues with 
the existing Mercantile building and recommended the property owner consider a more 
comprehensive redevelopment plan. There were also concerns that the proposed studio 
efficiency units would ultimately be used as vacation rentals.

Although the Commissioners applauded the conceptual architectural design, they advised the 
applicant that the project would be unlikely to receive a favorable decision if a formal application 
were submitted.

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Conceptual Plans
2. 115 San Jose Master Use Permit Request
3. Parking Study
4. Kimley-Horn Third Party Review of Parking Study
5. Public Comment

Report Prepared By:  Katie Cattan
Senior Planner

9.C

Packet Pg. 75



l' 
I 

~=---occ~ 
VIEW FROM THE ESPLANADE 

VIEW FROM SAN JOSE AVENUE 

CONCEPT PLAN 

INDEX 

AI ILLUSTRATIONS 
Al EXISTING SITE PLAN 
1.] SITE PLAN 
"4 FLOOR PlANS 
AS ELEVATlONS 
CI DAAlNAGE 
U LANDSCAPE 

RECEIVED 

~O'i l' 

CITY OF C4h ..... i..A 

CAPITOlA 
MERCANTILE 

AUGUST28. 20IS 

AI 

9.C.1

Packet Pg. 76

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
n

ce
p

tu
al

 P
la

n
s 

 (
13

76
 :

 1
15

 S
an

 J
o

se
 A

ve
n

u
e)



. {7 

r .. - "Ii 
• 

m 
oG . ,o 

<D----" .... ".'l!ii!ii~'l!l ........ ----

, 
• 
> 
< 

o 
> 
< 

"""' .. , 
I~ 

""".en 
"=,:,,,0;:." 

:-.:: 

CAPITOlA 
MERCANTILE 

AUGUST 28, 1(11 S 

A2 

9.C.1

Packet Pg. 77

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
n

ce
p

tu
al

 P
la

n
s 

 (
13

76
 :

 1
15

 S
an

 J
o

se
 A

ve
n

u
e)



........ _. 
-< _. _. _. 
wo. _. 
w • • 
woo, _. --....... _ .... 
-~ . ~ ~ . 

~. 

"' ~ -~ m 
~ -~ 
~ 

~ --w 

--

, 

'" 

THAOIER& 
THOMPSON 
ARCHITECTS 

'lI1±E~~~ 

CA~TOLA 
MERCANnLE 

AUGUST 28. lOIS 

A3 

9.C.1

Packet Pg. 78

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
n

ce
p

tu
al

 P
la

n
s 

 (
13

76
 :

 1
15

 S
an

 J
o

se
 A

ve
n

u
e)



E . 
F ' ~~. 
F~ 

~. 

2noiI _...,_ -_. 
-
: 

iiI"--: . - . 
-

: 

m . ., ... 

CD • 
L. ___ _ 

CAPITOLA 
MERCANTILE 

AUGUST 2B. lOIS 

A4 

9.C.1

Packet Pg. 79

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
n

ce
p

tu
al

 P
la

n
s 

 (
13

76
 :

 1
15

 S
an

 J
o

se
 A

ve
n

u
e)



EXISTING 
MERCANTILE 

'U'LOIN\_.", __ ~ __ "", ___ --

EXISTING 
MERCANTlLE 
BUILDING 

ELEVATION FROM SAN JOSE AVENUE 

PRIVATE 
TEPJlACE 

PAll.KJNG GAAAGE 

SECTION FROM SAN JOSE AVENUE 

ELEVATION F ROH THE ESPLANADE 

EXISTlNG 

WILDING 

CAPITOLA 
MERCANTILE 

AUGUST28,2015 

AS 

9.C.1

Packet Pg. 80

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
n

ce
p

tu
al

 P
la

n
s 

 (
13

76
 :

 1
15

 S
an

 J
o

se
 A

ve
n

u
e)



,.-

--- --.- - -------

II I 11 1 ~ I r I I I I I IT""'" 
til I 

I .... , 
I ..... _._'" 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

_w .. ___ .... ______ ,., ----___ w ___ ¥ ____ ,_ ---_ ... _ .... _ .. --------==--~~--,.--

c'"'O '.,., ' ..... m ....... _ .... 

.. r 
"1 

I 
!! 

I 
~ • 
> • 
~ 
z • • 

Pmt fLIIjB 5!ztK! cal 9' ene)8S 

--·Wl·' · ..... ·· ... ....... ... " .. .--.... _
' !'I ""<" ~ "" ............ .,~ .. . ,.," 

~ =:...:;: -i-': -r:...-:.a:.:o$ =-=-.:. ,-... __ .... _-_ .. _-_._-. _ .. _--_._-_ .... ----, .... _-- C tO 
..... ,».11 

9.C.1

Packet Pg. 81

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
n

ce
p

tu
al

 P
la

n
s 

 (
13

76
 :

 1
15

 S
an

 J
o

se
 A

ve
n

u
e)



SEAlEVI:l 

...... .... ........ -------=~ ) 
;=\ ~--=-
\.:T-~-

t' 
_ ..... 

~5 == -= 
o ---

( ! ==---= =-
• --=== • ------- --- ... ------

T T 

" » • w W ( 
d :>
I- Z Z 
:z w" «: > 0 
<.:> (" 
a::: w J 
w w ( 
:::0 0 u 
:5' ~ o Z 0 
I- < to: CIl _ 
«: •• 
" r ( 
~ r U 

L-1 
orone 

9.C.1

Packet Pg. 82

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 C

o
n

ce
p

tu
al

 P
la

n
s 

 (
13

76
 :

 1
15

 S
an

 J
o

se
 A

ve
n

u
e)



9.C.2

Packet Pg. 83

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

15
 S

an
 J

o
se

 M
as

te
r 

U
se

 P
er

m
it

 R
eq

u
es

t 
 (

13
76

 :
 1

15
 S

an
 J

o
se

 A
ve

n
u

e)



9.C.2

Packet Pg. 84

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 1

15
 S

an
 J

o
se

 M
as

te
r 

U
se

 P
er

m
it

 R
eq

u
es

t 
 (

13
76

 :
 1

15
 S

an
 J

o
se

 A
ve

n
u

e)



9.C.3

Packet Pg. 85

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
tu

d
y 

 (
13

76
 :

 1
15

 S
an

 J
o

se
 A

ve
n

u
e)



9.C.3

Packet Pg. 86

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
tu

d
y 

 (
13

76
 :

 1
15

 S
an

 J
o

se
 A

ve
n

u
e)



9.C.3

Packet Pg. 87

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
tu

d
y 

 (
13

76
 :

 1
15

 S
an

 J
o

se
 A

ve
n

u
e)



9.C.3

Packet Pg. 88

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
tu

d
y 

 (
13

76
 :

 1
15

 S
an

 J
o

se
 A

ve
n

u
e)



Mercantile Parking Peer Review – City of Capitola Page 1

MEMORANDUM
From: Frederik Venter PE, Kimley-Horn and Associates

To: Katie Cattan, City of Capitola

Date: January 28, 2016

Re:         Parking Analysis Peer Review: 115 San Jose Street, Mercantile Master Plan

This memorandum presents our peer review of the Parking Analysis conducted by Ron Marquez, dated
August 18, 2015, for the Mercantile Building located at 115 San Jose Street in Capitola, CA.

The parking analysis uses slightly inflated parking rates compared the 4 th Edition ITE Parking Generation
Manual. This results in inflated parking rates by 6.7% for the restaurant use and 1.5% for retail use on a
weekday use. Over weekends, the restaurant uses increases by 16% per ITE, and the parking demand
was subsequently also increased further. The ULI shared parking principles are applied per the empirical
values.

The parking analysis also assumes that 13 parking spaces will be available for residential use and these
spaces are not included in the shared demand, even though it would be per the parking operations
proposal in the project description. However, this will result in a reduction of public parking, which is a
concern. How can valet operations be utilized to maintain at least current public parking supply.

The description of the valet service, how the lifts will be manned, controlled and operated, and how
public parking will be provided, are vague. It is recommended that the valet service operations and
management of parking be described in more/better detail for typical daytime, weekend, and nighttime
uses, when valet may not be available and when the lifts have to also be operational, especially  if public
parking is allowed.

The analysis is thus slightly conservative compared to typical 85 percentile demand calculations. ITE 85%
tile highest parking demand would be 46 spaces (weekday demand plus 16% for restaurant and no
shared residential spaces) on a Saturday peak, compared to a demand of 49 spaces in the study. The
project proposes to supply 36 spaces plus 13 mechanical lift spaces for a total of 49 spaces.

Taking into consideration the use of a valet service and the use of mechanical parking lifts and the
inherent risks with breakdown of the proposed valet system, or mechanical failure of the lifts, the
additional demand of 3 spaces, or about 10%, is fully supported. Also, on-street parking capacity in the
Village is very constrained and thus little capacity is available to accommodate any variations in the
estimated parking demand should it spill over onto the Village streets.

It is further recommended that the parking operations be monitored (after 6 months of operation and
also after one year of operation, then annually) and the valet program adjusted to maintain the parking
demand at 49 spaces. If the applicant cannot maintain the demand of 49 spaces, the valet service should
be extended to include parking in the Pac Cove Lot and the developer would then pay an in-lieu fee for
use of parking space/s in this lot.

9.C.4

Packet Pg. 89

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 K

im
le

y-
H

o
rn

 T
h

ir
d

 P
ar

ty
 R

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
P

ar
ki

n
g

 S
tu

d
y 

 (
13

76
 :

 1
15

 S
an

 J
o

se
 A

ve
n

u
e)



9.C.5

Packet Pg. 90

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

u
b

lic
 C

o
m

m
en

t 
 (

13
76

 :
 1

15
 S

an
 J

o
se

 A
ve

n
u

e)



9.C.5

Packet Pg. 91

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

u
b

lic
 C

o
m

m
en

t 
 (

13
76

 :
 1

15
 S

an
 J

o
se

 A
ve

n
u

e)



9.C.5

Packet Pg. 92

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

u
b

lic
 C

o
m

m
en

t 
 (

13
76

 :
 1

15
 S

an
 J

o
se

 A
ve

n
u

e)



9.C.5

Packet Pg. 93

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

u
b

lic
 C

o
m

m
en

t 
 (

13
76

 :
 1

15
 S

an
 J

o
se

 A
ve

n
u

e)



9.C.5

Packet Pg. 94

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

u
b

lic
 C

o
m

m
en

t 
 (

13
76

 :
 1

15
 S

an
 J

o
se

 A
ve

n
u

e)



9.C.5

Packet Pg. 95

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

u
b

lic
 C

o
m

m
en

t 
 (

13
76

 :
 1

15
 S

an
 J

o
se

 A
ve

n
u

e)



9.C.5

Packet Pg. 96

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

u
b

lic
 C

o
m

m
en

t 
 (

13
76

 :
 1

15
 S

an
 J

o
se

 A
ve

n
u

e)



9.C.5

Packet Pg. 97

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

u
b

lic
 C

o
m

m
en

t 
 (

13
76

 :
 1

15
 S

an
 J

o
se

 A
ve

n
u

e)



9.C.5

Packet Pg. 98

A
tt

ac
h

m
en

t:
 P

u
b

lic
 C

o
m

m
en

t 
 (

13
76

 :
 1

15
 S

an
 J

o
se

 A
ve

n
u

e)



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
AGENDA REPORT

MEETING OF FEBRUARY 11, 2016

FROM: Community Development

SUBJECT: Zoning Code Update - Initiation of Public Review 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:  Accept staff presentation.

BACKGROUND: The City of Capitola initiated an effort in 2014 to comprehensively update its 
1975 Zoning Code. Over the past 18 months, staff solicited input from a variety of stakeholders 
to identify issues with current Zoning Code and opportunities for improvement. Staff used this 
feedback to develop an issues and options paper which served as the basis for eight public 
hearings with the Planning Commission and City Council to provide staff with policy direction 
prior to drafting an updated Code.

Staff has completed a draft Zoning Code Update based on policy direction received during the 
issues and options hearings. The draft updated Code was released on February 4, 2016, for an 
extended public review and comment period. During the March 3, 2016, regularly scheduled 
Planning Commission hearing, staff will present significant changes in the updated Zoning 
Code, address any issues the Commission wishes to debate, and to schedule additional review 
meetings, as necessary. During the Planning Commission review, staff will present updates to 
the City Council during regularly scheduled meetings.

Interested members of the public will have opportunities to provide comments on the draft Code 
throughout the hearing process. The draft Code will be available at City Hall, the Capitola 
branch library and the City’s website at:  
http://www.cityofcapitola.org/communitydevelopment/page/zoning-code-update

DISCUSSION: At the February 11, 2016, City Council hearing, staff will provide an overview of 
the draft Zoning Code Update and an orientation to facilitate review of the document. No 
decisions or actions on the Zoning Code content will be requested during these initial meetings.

The updated Zoning Code represents a comprehensive overhaul of the existing code. The 
updated Code presents a refreshed format and organization which is intended to be more user-
friendly for the public, decision-makers, developers, and staff. Where possible, development 
standards are shown in tables for ease of reference and graphics are used to better illustrate 
the meaning and intent of various regulations.

Tips to Review the updated Zoning Code: The extensive scope of revisions in the updated Code 
does not lend itself to showing changes in a traditional strikeout-underline format. Instead, a 
disposition table has been prepared which includes all substantive Code revisions. The 
disposition table will be circulated with the draft Zoning Code. In addition, major changes are 
highlighted in the body of the draft Code with an illustration and description as shown in the 
following example:

9.D

Packet Pg. 99

http://www.cityofcapitola.org/communitydevelopment/page/zoning-code-update


Zoning Code Update - Initiation of Public Review 
February 11, 2016

Note:  Procedures and criteria for addressing unlisted land uses in Subsection D below are new.

Highlights of the updated Zoning Code: The updated Zoning Code includes new and revised 
zoning districts, permit processes, development standards, and procedures which are intended 
to streamline the development review process while implementing General Plan goals to protect 
Capitola’s coastal village character and to promote design excellence. The following represents 
some of the key changes in the updated Zoning Code:

 Improved organization and format to improve clarity and usability;

 A new user guide to help citizens access, understand, and apply the Zoning Code;

 Revised regulations to comply with federal and state law;

 Streamlined permitting process for routine permits including signs, design permits, 
rooftop solar systems, and tenant improvements;

 Consolidated/eliminated 6 overlay zones to simplify the zoning map;

 Updated coastal overlay chapter with significantly improved organization and clarity;

 Improved historic preservation chapter which codifies process to review and modify 
historic structures and provides incentives and exceptions to promote preservation;

 Simplified legal non-conforming standards which eliminates 80% valuation standard and 
adds a new replication allowance;

 Revised parking standards for take-out restaurants in the Village to replace the current 
6-seat rule with a square-footage allowance;

 Relaxed development standards for secondary dwelling units;

 Planned Developments would no longer be allowed in R-1 zones;

 Better defined community benefits to qualify for a Planned Development or increased 
floor area ratio allowances;

 Simplified Floor Area Ratio calculation;

 New lighting standards;

 New regulations to control unattended donation boxes;

 Improved guidance on when post approval changes to a project trigger review by the 
Planning Commission;

 New standards to limit the allowable area of outdoor commercial displays;

 Incentives to encourage non-conforming multi-family uses in single-family zones to make 
needed property improvements.  Also reduced allowable extensions from 50 to 25 years.

 New standards to allow parklets and sidewalk dining areas;

 New minor modification process to allow the Planning Commission to authorize minor 
deviations to certain development standards which don’t meet variance findings;

 New standards to regulate the placement of outdoor decks in residential zones;

9.D

Packet Pg. 100



Zoning Code Update - Initiation of Public Review 
February 11, 2016

 Modified Design Review process to allow a second architect to review major projects;

 New requirements for large commercial and residential projects to provide bike and 
electric vehicle parking.

Report Prepared By:  Katie Cattan
Senior Planner

9.D

Packet Pg. 101


	Agenda Packet
	CLOSED SESSION
	LIABILITY CLAIMS

	REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL
	1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
	A. Roll Call

	2. PRESENTATIONS
	A. Certificate of Appreciation to Sondi Carcello
	Printout: Certificate of Appreciation to Sondi Carcello
	1. Sondi Carcello Certificate of Appreciation

	B. METRO Presentation
	Printout: METRO Presentation
	1. METRO Talking Points


	3. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION
	4. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS
	A. Item 9.B. Appeal on Surf School Permit Denial - Communications
	Attachment: Item 9.B. Appeal on Surf School Permit Denial - Communications

	B. Item 9.C. 115 San Jose Avenue Mercantile Redevelopment - Communications
	Attachment: Item 9.C. 115 San Jose Avenue Mercantile Redevelopment - Communications


	5. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA
	6. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	7. CITY COUNCIL / CITY TREASURER / STAFF COMMENTS
	8. CONSENT CALENDAR
	A. Approval of City Council Minutes
	Printout: Approval of City Council Minutes
	1. Draft January 28, 2016, City Council Minutes

	B. Planning Commission Action Minutes 2/4/16
	Printout: Planning Commission Action Minutes 2/4/16
	1. Planning Commission Action Minutes of February 4, 2016

	C. Second Quarter Budget and First Quarter Sales Tax
	Printout: Second Quarter Budget and First Quarter Sales Tax
	1. Budget Report Second Quarter FY 15/16
	2. Sales Tax First Quarter FY15/16

	D. Liability Claims
	Printout: Liability Claims


	9. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS
	A. Presentation of Library Renderings
	Printout: Presentation of Library Renderings

	B. Appeal on Surf School Permit Denial
	Printout: Appeal on Surf School Permit Denial
	1. Jason Alaniz Surf School Permit Appeal
	2. Draft Surf Permit Admin Policy
	3. Draft Ordinance Change for Surf School Regulations
	4. Capitola Surf Paddle 2016 application

	C. 115 San Jose Avenue
	Printout: 115 San Jose Avenue
	1. Conceptual Plans
	2. 115 San Jose Master Use Permit Request
	3. Parking Study
	4. Kimley-Horn Third Party Review of Parking Study
	5. Public Comment

	D. Zoning Code Update - Initiation of Public Review
	Printout: Zoning Code Update - Initiation of Public Review


	10. ADJOURNMENT

	Appendix
	2.A · Certificate of Appreciation to Sondi Carcello
	2.A.1 · Sondi Carcello Certificate of Appreciation

	2.B · METRO Presentation
	2.B.1 · METRO Talking Points

	4.A · Item 9.B. Appeal on Surf School Permit Denial - Communications
	4.B · Item 9.C. 115 San Jose Avenue Mercantile Redevelopment - Communications
	8.A · Approval of City Council Minutes
	8.A.1 · Draft January 28, 2016, City Council Minutes

	8.B · Planning Commission Action Minutes 2/4/16
	8.B.1 · Planning Commission Action Minutes of February 4, 2016

	8.C · Second Quarter Budget and First Quarter Sales Tax
	8.C.1 · Budget Report Second Quarter FY 15/16
	8.C.2 · Sales Tax First Quarter FY15/16

	8.D · Liability Claims
	9.A · Presentation of Library Renderings
	9.B · Appeal on Surf School Permit Denial
	9.B.1 · Jason Alaniz Surf School Permit Appeal
	9.B.2 · Draft Surf Permit Admin Policy
	9.B.3 · Draft Ordinance Change for Surf School Regulations
	9.B.4 · Capitola Surf Paddle 2016 application

	9.C · 115 San Jose Avenue
	9.C.1 · Conceptual Plans
	9.C.2 · 115 San Jose Master Use Permit Request
	9.C.3 · Parking Study
	9.C.4 · Kimley-Horn Third Party Review of Parking Study
	9.C.5 · Public Comment

	9.D · Zoning Code Update - Initiation of Public Review


